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Vedan International (Holdings) Limited has been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 2003. The Group is the leading
producer of fermentation-based amino acids, food additive products and
cassava starch-based industrial products in Asia. Our products are sold to
food distributors, international trading companies, and manufacturers of
food, paper, textile, and chemical products in Vietnam and other ASEAN
countries, the PRC, Japan, Taiwan and several European countries. Most of

our products are marketed under the VEDAN brand name.
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Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the
PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market expansion, the
Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production
base. Since then, the Group's production has undergoing continuous
expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group is currently
the largest MSG producer in the Southeast Asian region, and the
largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch-based industrial products
in Vietnam. In 1995, Vedan acquired a factory in Xiamen to focus on
developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group further acquired the
assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan Foods Company Limited,
which will be developed into its business operations center in the
PRC, signifying its determination and commitment to become a major
player in the PRC market. To ensure the Group has a stable supply of
starch and a strong production platform for starch related products,
Vedan Vietnam acquired Ve-Thai Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November
2005. In December the same year, Shandong Vedan Snowflake
Enterprise Co., Ltd. was established and started production of GA
in April 2006. Shandong Vedan Snowflake will play a crucial role in
Vedan’s global supply chain in the future, allowing it to meet the
demand and to stabilise prices of raw materials, hence facilitate its
business development strategy in the PRC.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and the
PRC, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing of
advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical
processing technology, coupled with the experienced management
team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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Vietnam Office iEH =&
National Road 51, Hamlet 1A,
Phuoc Thai, Long Thanh District,
Dong Nai Province, Vietnam
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No. 518 Lianying Road, Chedun Town,
Songjiang District, Shanghai, PRC
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Industrial Development Zone, Shandong Province, PRC
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

BEt-A=+-BLEE

For the year ended 31 December

2014 2013
us$'000 US$'000 Difference
FEn FE
Revenue g 325,627 342,453
Gross profit S 44,116 48,089
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BE),/HF (2,928) 728 (502.20%
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners WEAEN (BB)EF (2,434) 1,488 (263.58%
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREARZEF (0.16) US centsEfL  0.10 US cents L
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share BREERF (0.16) US centsEfL  0.10 US cents L
Final dividend proposed per share BEGRAEARE - US centsZE Al - US cents Al
Total dividends paid and B R ER

proposed per share

BRBE R

- US centsEfll  0.101 US cents3=Hll
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Chairman’s Statement
FTERES

Armed With Modern Technology And
Sound Management, We Have Successfully
Created A Number Of Quality Products

To Cater To The Consumers’ Tastes And
Demands.

BERRKBXREEEE RMFAEZEE
BHEM WO HEENAKRMENK.

Yang, Tou-Hsiung
ChairmanZ /& %R LE

Long-established in Asia, Vedan International (Holdings)
Limited is a premier manufacturer of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive and cassava starch-based products.
Its prominent reputation has been built on the quality
manufacture of MSG, a key food additive lying at the heart of
the unique tastes of Asia’s two billion consumers. The Group's
vision of the future is simple: to expand and enrich its markets
across the Asian region while developing new products for the
demand of consumers.

PRAHEAER (¥EA%) BRR AT T - R LARES
EERMEERER REANNDMAZE
BMBERNMBLEER -KABRKRD
RNEEREEEEENRBER L
MEEERBAMPEDMN - TREE
BRWAOKFEEEEMM -REKRK
BB R: IR M INSREMNT IS - BRTE
fn M BB EENT R

Annual Report 2014 3§ 07



Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

Looking at the global economy in 2014, although signs of recovery
could be seen in certain areas, the recovery pace of many regions
and countries, including Vietnam, remained slow which inevitably
impeded the expansion plans of local companies. Meanwhile, the
intense price competition among MSG industry players has also
presented challenges to the Group’s major markets and further
squeezed its overall profitability. Although there were no notable
fluctuations in the prices of raw materials during 2014, the prices of
natural gas and energy in Vietnam did not weaken and fall in step
with the declining international price of crude oil. The continuous
increase in energy costs exacerbated a situation already characterised
by high production costs, thus the Group was unable to provide its
products at competitive prices. Confronted with these challenges
in both sales and production, the Group's focus of operations
for this year was stabilising material costs, flexibly adjusting
production operations to enhance cost efficiency, and accelerating
implementation of energy-saving initiatives while increasing
marketing efforts and developing new products. Such actions
can alleviate the impact of the highly competitive environment
on sales and increasing energy prices through reducing expenses
and broadening the streams, thus enabling the Group to maintain
profitability.

Looking at the Group's operations and profit for this year, turnover
amounted to US$325,000,000, a decrease of around 4.9% when
compared with the corresponding period last year. The decline was
mainly attributable to fierce price competition among industry players
which caused the turnover of the Group’s major markets in Vietnam,
Japan, ASEAN and Europe to drop by varying degrees. At the same
time, the rising prices of natural gas and energy in Vietnam, the
Group's major production base, have in turn increased the Group's
production costs and eroded our profitability, so gross profit dropped
8.3% from the previous year. Net profit was also dragged down
by lower turnover and gross profit, thus the Group recorded an
operating loss for the first time.

In terms of geographical markets and segment performance, in
Vietnam, the Group’s major market, economic headwinds and
fluctuating exchange rates have further affected both its exports
and domestic consumption. The resulting unfavourable operating
environment has presented strident challenges for the Group’s
operations, most notably its production operations within that
country. Although the Group has been focusing on strengthening
its distribution channels and enhancing its branding efforts, the
competition centred around the low prices among MSG peers. The
low prices have still affected the sales of unbranded large-packaged
MSG, resulting in a year-on-year drop of 2.6% in the revenues from
the market in Vietnam. Our PRC operation has also been seriously
affected by the market competition and the government’s anti-
extravagance campaign which has had a short-term impact on the
dining industry, suppressing sales and resulting in a sales decrease
of approximately 11.9% over last year. Similarly, the sales to the
market in Japan were also reduced by the price competition, which
has also led to a substantial decline in the selling price there as well.
The depreciating Japanese yen in particular increased the cost of
exporting to this market. Consequently, the sales performance of the
Group in Japan has decreased by 6.2% from the previous year. The
ASEAN and European markets experienced an even more adverse
impact due to the cutthroat price competition in the first half of the
year. Thus, the prices of products in these two markets have remained
very low. The Group has resisted engaging in the competition based
solely on price because profitability remains its key consideration.
As such, sales and revenues of MSG in these regions contracted
substantially when compared with the same period last year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

As for the performances of our products, for our major product,
MSG, the Group had to lower selling prices in various markets due to
the price competition among our peers. When compared to last year,
the revenue of MSG dropped by 5.9% as the Group has reduced the
sales to food processing users, which generated lower profit, so as to
bolster the Group's profitability. Revenue of modified starch, another
key product of the Group, rose by 3.1% as the Group enriched its
product mix and secured new customers during the year. Among the
specialty chemicals, soda recorded a drop of 9.4% in revenue due to
a very low price of imported products in the Vietnam market and the
ongoing unfavourable environment of related application industries.
Sales of hydrochloric acid recorded a year-on-year growth of 10.9%
benefitting from the greater demand of the metals processing
industry in Vietnam. The market demand and selling prices of
fertiliser and feed products remained stable but the sales decreased
due to adjustment to the production volume. Moreover, to tap the
growing demand and sales of amylase in Vietnam, the new maltose
plant has completed installation of equipment and started operation.
The new plant will not only enhance the production efficiency of its
existing syrup plant, but also diversify the Group's starch business
and ultimately create a new revenue growth driver.

In 2014, market competition has caused the Group's overall business
performance to drop. The operating environment is expected to
remain difficult in the near future. As such, the Group has reviewed
and enhanced the efficiency and effectiveness of its procedures to
better cope with potential changes in the operating environment.
As a start, the Group can improve its production efficiency and
lower product costs once the energy problem is solved at the
Vietnam plant. The Group is confident to create new business and
opportunities in the future. However, what's more important now
is to seize the trend of material costs, as well as to diversify and
expand raw material procurement strategies aimed at minimising
cost fluctuations and stabilising production costs. To further develop
its operations in Vietnam and the PRC, the Group is aggressively
strengthening its marketing strategies, as well as extending its
distribution and sales channels in order to realise the full potential of
its sales network. At the same time, the Group is planning to launch
new products to complement the current product lines, as well as
enhance its sales presence to boost its brand awareness. Besides, the
Group is also identifying potential strategic collaborative projects,
and by using its geographical strength and international experience,
aiming to improve efficiency while both broadening its revenue
streams. The Group is also continuing to bolster its research and
development (R&D) capabilities to improve production efficiency and
develop innovative products.

Although sentiment in the global market has gradually recovered, we
realise that the prevailing global economic conditions and operating
environment still pose tough challenges to the Group’s operations.
To tackle the challenges ahead, the Group is conducting an in-depth
analysis of its current situation as a prelude to planning and setting
future strategic directions. Though it is not easy to control or predict
macroeconomic trends, the management believes that the Group’s
prudent operational approach and strategies for market expansion
and branding can mitigate the effects of the adverse macroeconomic
situation. We will conduct an in-depth analysis on how to improve
the performance and how we can make a turnaround. The Group
plans to expand its business presence and improve profitability
through a more proactive approach, in particular after the energy
cost issue in Vietnam has been redressed. The Board will continue
to urge the management and all of the staff to adopt a prudent
approach and innovative vision to formulate and execute effective
operational and business development strategies over the medium
and long term to overcome the current challenges and explore new
opportunities in order to bring the Group's business to new heights.

By Order of the Board
Yang, Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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Standing Out in a
Specialised Industry
QNN
ERFRMRRE
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As a successful long-term player in a
market with significant entry barriers,
Vedan International has distinct competitive

advantages that add real value to its products.

With advanced expertise in large-scale
fermentation technology, starch processing
conversion technology and chemical

and electro-chemical technology, Vedan
International is developing new products
which represent the latest breakthroughs in
industrial science and look set to be major
profit drivers in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFNWED

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The US economy has become the best performer in the world
in 2014, enjoying a stable economic recovery, a strong US
dollar and a good year for its stock market. This was mainly
attributable to the US Federal Reserve’'s ongoing quantitative
easing policy and the inexpensive energy and raw materials
provided by the boom in shale oil and gas. The US was
Vietnam’s largest export destination and Vietnam managed
to achieve record highs in export and trade surplus thanks to
the improvement of business sentiment in the US. In Vietnam,
GDP growth for the year reached 5.98%, the highest in the
past four years. Its inflation rate has dropped from 18.58%
in 2011 to 4.09% in 2014. This was not only the lowest level
in the past decade, but also marked the first year in that
time in which the GDP growth rate exceeded inflation. As for
the financial aspects, apart from the slightly higher doubtful
debts of banks, the overall economy in Vietnam is developing
positively characterised by a stable US dollar-Viethnam Dong
exchange rate, a decline in the domestic interest rate, a trade
surplus and higher foreign exchange reserves. During the
year, rating firms Moody’s and Fitch have adjusted the credit
rating on Vietnam from B2 to B1 and B+ to BB- respectively.
Meanwhile, the Chinese economy has started its transformation
and its exports are facing challenges. Its economic expansion
is shifting from rapid growth in the past to a new state of
medium-speed growth. Elsewhere, the Eurozone economy is
struggling with recession and deflation, while the emerging
markets have been hit hard by both an economic slowdown
and the appreciation of the US dollar.

In 2014, the Group recorded revenue of US$325,627,000,
which represented 4.9% or US$16,826,000 less than the
amount of US$342,453,000 in 2013. The decrease was
mainly due to the drop in revenue of MSG/GA products by
US$14,055,000. Gross profit in 2014 declined by approximately
8.3% or US$3,973,000 to US$44,116,000. Overall gross
profit margin decreased to 13.5% from 14.0% in the last
corresponding period. Net profit margin declined from 0.2% to
a loss of -0.9%. Net loss amounted to US$2,928,000. The drop
in profit was mainly due to the tough price competition of MSG
product manufacturers in the PRC and the persistent increase
of energy costs of Vietnam-based factories which could not be
passed on in higher selling prices, which eroded the Group's
profitability. The slight decrease in MSG production also led
to a drop in the revenue of fertiliser of about US$4,927,000.
The slowdown in economic growth in the PRC and the Chinese
government’s crackdown on luxury spending have affected the
demand for MSG from the catering industry. Revenue in the
PRC has decreased by 11.9% or US$4,591,000. To resolve the
high energy cost of the Vietnam-based factories, the Company
has commenced alternative energy solutions, which are
expected to commence operation in the first quarter of 2015.
The new boiler should help lower the production costs of the
Vietnam-based factories and generate profit for the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWED M

2.

BUSINESS ANALYSIS

(1)

Sales Analysis by Market

 BRIW

(=) WEHETH

The Group’s revenue in Japan, its second largest
market, was US$74,985,000 in 2014, a decrease
of 6.2% or US$4,982,000 year-on-year. Revenue
from the Japanese market accounted for 23.0%
of the Group’s total revenue, down slightly from
23.4% in the last corresponding period. Japan was
the market which recorded the greatest reduction
in revenue, mainly due to substantial depreciation
of the Japanese yen and intense price competition
in the international market which led to lower
revenue generated from MSG sales in Japan. The
Group expects that the slower depreciation of the
Japanese yen and the reduction in prices of MSG
produced in Vietnam-based factories will help
facilitate the sales in the Japanese market.

Unit: US$'000 B FET
2014 2013 Difference
2014%F 20134 =8
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Area HE 28 % &8 % 28 %
Vietnam HiFg 164,619 50.6% 168,934 49.3% (4,315) (2.6%)
Japan AAK 74,985 23.0% 79,967 23.4% (4,982) (6.2%)
PRC HE 33,842 10.4% 38,433 11.2% (4,591) (11.9%)
ASEAN countries REXEE 29,787 9.1% 30,220 8.8% (433) (1.4%)
Other regions H ity 22,394 6.9% 24,899 7.3% (2,505) (10.1%)
Total Bt 325,627 100.0% 342,453 100.0% (16,826) (4.9%)
1. Vietnam 1. HETYS
Revenue from the Vietnam market amounted MEMS - —NFLREL
to approximately US$164,619,000, 2.6% or 164,619,000F L Lt = &
US$4,315,000 lower when compared with that — = F R 4 4,315,000% T4
of 2013. The decrease was mainly a result of the 2.6% c EWHAPRAEFEZER
intense price competition of MSG for processed AR I ARBERSFH
food products which reduced the sales of large- R AR RBIEKRE
packaged MSG, the production capacity of MSG, HE REKBEEER W
and the production capacity and sales of soda and bt 2R R E e N IHE
fertiliser. Sales of small-packaged MSG remained BN BE B/ N R IRIRIE B K
at the same level. Although the revenue of the SRUEFFIRHOK T - B T 5 &
Vietnam market decreased, its contribution to West AR - B E AR B
the Group’'s total revenue rose from 49.3% to 49.3%1E Z=50.6% ° & [E I8 &
50.6%. It is expected that the enhancement in the T -RFEEERKATE
competitiveness of the Vietnam-based factories MERGEF NIRA S B ERE
due to lower energy costs will fuel the growth of H & WERR G R o
revenue and profit of the Group in 2015.
2. Japan 2. HAmEH5

SEEFEF-_AMHEAAZZT M
& UW74,985,000% 7T '
—F — = F [ 4,982,000%
TL #96.2%  {F &R E A
23.4%[%23.0% -HARZSE
BB RENmE £ 8
FRHEZHABITKIBEEREH
BRIRFEERMER S  ERIKE
EWEBAMSERD - L@
FFETRERN S ERIET R
R OR RS A AN T B2 - 16 8 FIJiR
BEATEHHEE -
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2. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
(1) Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

3.

The PRC

The revenue from seasoning products in the PRC
recorded an increase, but the Group could not
increase the selling prices of its major products
including MSG and modified starch because of
over-supply and weak demand in the industry,
which in turn has led to a drop in revenue. Revenue
from this market reached US$33,842,000, which
was about 11.9% or US$4,591,000 less than
the amount of 2013, and its contribution to the
Group's total revenue has also declined from 11.2%
to 10.4% during the year under review. The Group
plans to enhance the sales of seasoning products
and secure extensive bulk materials and add new
products such as the cassava starch-based products
and wine products in order to improve revenue and
profit.

ASEAN member countries

In 2014, revenue from ASEAN member countries
amounted to US$29,787,000, up from 8.8% of
the Group’s total revenue to 9.1%. This figure
was around 1.4% or US$433,000 less than the
US$30,220,000 recorded in 2013. The drop in
revenue was mainly attributable to the keen
price competition in MSG products across ASEAN
member countries. Vietnam-based factories, as
part of their strategies, reduced the supply of
lower margin processed MSG products. Modified
starch recorded a notable growth in revenue during
the period and reached US$42,508,000. ASEAN
members countries are to form an economic
community in 2015. As one of the major MSG
producers in the region, Vietnam-based factories
will capture this opportunity to further expand into
the ASEAN market.

Other regions

Revenue from other regions dropped by
US$2,505,000 or 10.1% from US$24,899,000 in
2013 to US$22,394,000 in 2014, and decreased to
6.9% of total revenue from 7.3% during the last
corresponding period. This decline was because of
the decrease in demand for starch-related products
in Taiwan, the severe depreciation of the currency
of Russia, a major market in Europe, and the
lagging recovery of economies of other European
countries.

14 vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk /3 EIFB2 (1258%) BB A 3
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EF /44,591,000 7T 4
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BHFRIEBEE s KRR
BEMFISAEEE R IR
LTI & F -

HEK B B 745
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED M
2. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)

(2) Sales Analysis by Product

= BRSW(E|)
(Z) Em#HETH

Unit: US$'000 B FETT
2014 2013 Difference
20145 201345 =82
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Products HE kx-] % o] % TR %
MSG/GA Wi/ ARk 225,153 69.1% 239,208 69.9% (14,055) (5.9%)
Modified starch/ SR,/

Native starch RAB 43,220 13.3% 44,234 12.9% (1,014) (2.3%)
Hydrochloric acid/Soda  E2% /& 1] 22,566 6.9% 23,199 6.8% (633) (2.7%)
Fertiliser and feed P gA

products 21,809 6.7% 26,736 7.8% (4,927) (18.4%)
Others Hity 12,879 4.0% 9,076 2.6% 3,803 41.9%
Total At 325,627 100.0% 342,453 100.0% (16,826) (4.9%)

1. MSG and GA 1. BBHARRE

During the year under review, the Group has
lowered its selling prices in response to intensified
market competition. This plus the appreciation
of the US dollar and the ongoing recession in
some countries have caused revenue from MSG
operations to decrease to US$225,153,000,
approximately 5.9% or US$14,055,000 lower than
that in 2013. Its contribution to the Group’s total
revenue decreased slightly from 69.9 % to 69.1%
in 2014. Sales of MSG in the Group’s major markets
have also decreased, especially in Japan as the hit
from depreciation of the Japanese yen was the
greatest. The Group's strategy to first consolidate
the small-packaged MSG market resulted the
market share of this business segment remained
the same. As Vietnam-based factories are poised to
become more competitive in the future, the Group
will not only resume supplying large-packaged
MSG, but will also boost the sales of small-
packaged MSG.

HR IR 4% 4 k225,153,000
Ex K E—-—=ZF®EHD
14,055,000 70475.9% * 15 &

B 42 W R &= F69.9% % 5
69.1% - ANEBREMSH
FERAR MEETTHE
R — BB SRAG A B AR K iR
KEHEEEETEMEHE
WA BRI RAATEBA
TREMEROEESK R
B R B A RE/ B
ERAE T 5 » B 5 4G AR A
HEFF KT R 2R BE = R R R
BEABF HBETEIRERE
HRMINTAKBEE I
B eE@K WiEe/he
HIRIBHE -
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EEEFNWED

2. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
(2) Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

2.

Modified starch/native starch

The Group's development strategy for the starch
business is to focus more on products with higher
added-value. As a result, revenue from native
starch during the period dropped by US$1,525,000.
Modified starch has performed better with higher
sales recorded in Japan and ASEAN countries.
The total revenue of modified and native starch
recorded during the year declined by 2.3% or
US$1,014,000 to US$43,220,000. However its
contribution to the total revenue of the Group
increased from 12.9% to 13.3%.

Hydrochloric acid and soda/fertiliser and feed
products

Due to the slight reduction in production capacity
of MSG and the fact that related industries in
Vietnam have yet to recover completely, the sales
volume and selling prices of hydrochloric acid, soda,
fertiliser and feed products have all declined. Thus,
revenue from hydrochloric acid and soda decreased
by 2.7% or US$633,000 to US$22,566,000 in
2014, accounting for 6.9% of the Group's total
revenue, up from 6.8% last year.

Revenue of fertiliser and feed products dropped
by about 18.4% or US$4,927,000 from
US$26,736,000 in 2013 to US$21,809,000 in 2014,
and its contribution to the Group’s total revenue
declined from 7.8% to 6.7%.

The revenue of hydrochloric acid, soda, fertiliser
and feed products is expected to increase in 2015
benefitting from the improvement in production
capacity of MSG.

Others

Revenue of other products amounted to
US$12,879,000, an increase of about 41.9% or
US$3,803,000 from the amount of US$9,076,000
in 2013. The increase was mainly because Vietnam-
based factories have commenced the production of
new products in 2014 and the revenue of maltose
has improved and is expected to grow continuously
in 2015.
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3.

MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW

(1)

(2)

Cassava

In 2014, the cassava plantation in Vietnam has covered
close to 550,000 hectares with a total output of around
10,000,000 tonnes, a growth of 2.8%. Its average
output per hectare was low at about 18.2 tonnes, lower
than the output of 21.1 tonnes in Thailand. There were
more than a hundred cassava starch processing plants
across Vietnam. 30% of cassava and cassava-related
products are for domestic sales and the remaining
70% are for export. Vietnam was the second-largest
exporter of cassava and cassava-related products in the
world, immediately behind Thailand and the PRC was
the largest export destination. In 2014, Vietnam has
exported cassava and cassava-related products valued at
US$1.3 billion, a year-on-year growth of 5.4% and 2.6%
respectively. While the international oil price has dropped
and the PRC has reduced imports of cassava during the
period, the price of cassava remained at a similar level
as the previous quarter supported by the Vietnamese
government’s efforts in encouraging drivers to use E5
ethanol gasoline as fuel for vehicles.

Molasses

In recent years, there has been an excess supply of
molasses in the world. However, international supply and
demand of molasses has remained generally balanced in
2014/15 and the over-supply problem over the past four
years is about to end. As molasses are mainly consumed
by alcohol manufacturers, fermentation companies and
feed producers, its end-product prices cannot totally
reflect the adjustment in the price of molasses. The strong
demand for bio-fuels in Thailand has reduced the export
of molasses, thus some of the molasses manufacturers in
Vietnam produce bio-fuels internally, which has caused
the supply of molasses to drop continuously. While
international oil prices have gone down considerably, the
product price of molasses for 2014/15 should rise from
the previous quarter.

= XERH GRS
(—) K&

(
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3. MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW
(continued)

(3)

Energy

The cogeneration factory of Vedan Vietnam is currently
using natural gas as fuel, so the gradually climbing
gas cost since 2010 has boosted the production cost
accordingly. Although the international oil price in
2014 has decreased notably because of the exploitation
of shale oil, gas costs in Vietnam have continued to
increase during the period, which has increased the MSG
production cost and severely affected the profitability of
the factories in Vietnam. Therefore, in the first quarter of
2015, alternative energy solutions replacing natural gas
in the factories in Vietnam will commence operation. As
coal is much cheaper than natural gas, the move is set to
enhance the competitiveness of the factory.

4. FINANCIAL REVIEW

(1)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

In response to the Central Bank of Vietnam's periodic
efforts to decrease the interest rate on Vietnam Dong
deposits during the year under review, the Group utilised
part of its deposits denominated in Vietnam Dong to
repay the borrowings in US dollars. As at 31 December
2014, the Group had cash and bank deposits of
Us$45,203,000, which was approximately US$1,570,000
or about 3.4% lower than that amount in late 2013.
Short-term bank borrowings decreased by US$4,228,000
or 9.8% to US$38,857,000, while long-term bank
borrowings rose by US$30,622,000 to US$32,696,000
from US$2,074,000 in late 2013 due to financing the
investment in alternative energy solutions during the
year. Total bank borrowings increased by US$26,394,000,
or around 58.4% as compared with that at the end of
2013 to US$71,553,000. The borrowings were mainly
denominated in US dollars, which accounted for 97.8%
of the total and the remaining 2.2% was denominated
in New Taiwan dollars. The proportions of short-term and
medium-to-long-term bank borrowings were 54.3% and
45.7%.

As at 31 December 2014, inventory decreased by 9.1%
or US$10,427,000 to US$104,775,000 as compared with
that at the end of 2013. Trade receivables amounted to
US$25,981,000, a decrease of 15.5% or US$4,760,000
from late 2013, and around 74.5% of them were due
within 30 days.
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4.

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

(1) Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

In light of the increased borrowings, the gearing ratio
(total borrowings to total capital ratio) was 26.8%,
which was higher than 16.7% at the end of last year.
Net gearing ratio (total borrowings less cash and deposits
to total capital ratio) was 9.9%, also higher than -0.6%
in late 2013. As inventory, trade receivables and current
liabilities declined, current ratio was 2.7 in 2014,
maintaining the level of that of 2013, with a slight drop
of 0.1.

(2) Capital Expenditure
During the year, capital expenditure amounted
to approximately US$61,382,000, approximately
US$53,103,000 higher than the amount of US$8,279,000
in 2013. The increase was a result of investing alternative
energy solutions.

EXCHANGE RATE

In 2014, the Vietnam economy remained stable with a trade
surplus of more than US$2 billion. At the beginning of
2014, the US dollar to Vietnam Dong exchange rate stood at
VND21,036 to US$1. In May 2014, the Government adjusted
the VND/US$ rate downward by 1% to VND21,246 to US$1,
representing the first depreciation by the Central Bank of
Vietnam in more than one year. During 2014, the US$/VDN rate
only depreciated 1% and the VND remained stable compared to
other Asian currencies.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly for domestic
distribution and the transactions are denominated in RMB. In
2014, the exchange rate of RMB to USD was fluctuating and
volatile. The RMB dropped 0.36% in the whole year, the first
depreciation of the RMB to the USD since the RMB currency
reform was launched in 2005. The Japanese yen to USD
exchange rate continued to depreciate during the last two
years and recorded a decrease of around 14% in the year of
2014. Around 45% of the revenue of the Vietnam factories was
in USD, so basically it can balance its USD requirements and
reduce the potential exchange risk.
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DIVIDEND

The Board decided not to distribute dividends because a loss
was recorded in this year.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, ASEAN member countries are expected to
set up an ASEAN Economic Community by the end of 2015.
The closer integration within ASEAN member countries in
2014 offered obvious benefits, covering more than 600 million
people with a GDP exceeding US$2.5 trillion. Based on trading
volume, 70% regional trades are tax-free and the effective tax
rate is below 5%. In 2015, the ties have become even closer,
which in turn will help Vedan Vietnam in expanding its ASEAN
market and securing competitive resources. To foster future
growth in Vietnam and China markets, the Group will keep
abreast of the latest market situation and is set to grow steadily
in 2015.

A.  The operating approach of the Vietnam operations will
follow the general strategic direction outlined below:

- Leverage the establishment of the ASEAN Economic
Community to expand ASEAN market

- Develop high value-added starch products to boost
profitability

- Develop customised chemical fertilisers and organic
compound fertilisers

- Continue to lower costs and enhance production
capacity

- Ensure all core products such as MSG, modified
starch, soda and hydrochloric acid occupy leading
positions within their respective markets in Vietnam

- Optimally utilise resources, focus on core products,
enhance our competitive edge and increase
profitability
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7. PROSPECTS (continued)

B.  The operating approach of the China operations will
follow the general strategic direction outlined below:

Enhance seasoning products and focus on
implementing the distribution channel model

Enhance its own brand and strengthen marketing
channels

Develop new cassava starch-based products, build
a professional team and expand into food and
beverage industry

Simplify workflow, improve organisational structure
and bolster the Group’s capabilities

Invest in sugar and starch business together with
extensive bulk materials market. Distribute new
products and enter the alcohol business
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At the heart of Vedan International’s

business success is a group of core products
with widespread applications and strong
brand recognition, one of the Group’s most
important and well-guarded assets. Its
renowned “Vedan” brand MSG, for example,
is considered essential throughout the food
processing industries across Asia for its role

in enhancing the flavours of a range of
foodstuffs, and enjoys a huge and constantly
growing market throughout Vietnam, the PRC,
ASEAN countries, Japan and the United States.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EE SAREERERAAWEGEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 72, the Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Company. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung graduated from Taichung
Min Der Commercial Vocational High School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
has approximately 52 years’ working experience in the MSG industry
and is one of the founders of the Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung is responsible for formulating our overall corporate
strategy. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is also a director of Vedan Vietnam,
Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International Limited.
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino
Acid Manufacturers Association.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 60, an Executive Director of the Company. Mr.
YANG, Cheng had approximately 39 years’ working experience in the
MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our
business development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director
of Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King
International Limited. Mr. YANG, Cheng is presently the Chairman
of Vedan Culture and Education Foundation, the Chairman of
Chunghwa Real Property Research Association, Executive director of
New Taiyuan Urban Development Association and the supervisor of
Taichung Culture & Education Fondation. Mr. YANG, Cheng obtained
an EMBA Degree from Xiamen University in the PRC in 2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 57, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing
Group's operations and strategic management. Mr. YANG, Kun-
Hsiang obtained a master degree in agricultural chemistry from
Meiji University, Japan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has been involved
in the development of the business operations of Vedan Vietnam
since 1991. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is currently a director and
President of Vedan Vietnam and also a director of Taiwan Vedan,
Billion Power Limited and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Hsiang is also the Chairman of Taiwan Amino Acid
Manufacturers Association and Honorary Chairman of Taiwan Food
GMP Development Association. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has 28 years’
working experience in the MSG industry

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 51, an Executive Director and a director of
Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited, High Capital
Investments Limited and also the President of Dan Lian Biotechnology
Corporation. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has approximately 18 years’
working experience in the MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is
responsible for coordinating our purchase activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-
Wen obtained a bachelor degree in mechanics in 1993 from Waseda
University, Japan.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, 55, an Executive Director. Mr. YANG, Kun-
Chou had approximately 33 years’ working experience in the food,
beverage and consumer products industry. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is
a director and Vice President of Taiwan Vedan and is also a director
of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan, Xiamen Vedan (formerly known
as Xiamen Maotai) and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Chou also holds directorship in Ve Wong Corporation (a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) since 28
June 2006.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 61, a Non-executive Director and
Chairman of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen Vedan (formerly known
as Xiamen Maotai). Mr. HUANG is also the Vice President of Taiwan
Vedan. Mr. HUANG graduated from the department of accounting
and statistics of the National Taichung Commercial College, Taiwan
in 1974. Mr. HUANG has approximately 37 years’ experience in
administration and finance.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, 54, a Non-executive Director. Mr. CHOU is
the Supervisor of Taiwan Vedan. Mr. CHOU is also a Supervisor of
Shih-Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHOU was the director and legal
consultant of Wincome Incorporation and he has over 22 years of
experience in the legal industry. Mr. CHOU obtained his Bachelor of
Law degree from Soochow University, Master of Law degree from
East China University of Political Science and Law and Doctorate of
Law degree from Peking University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 53, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHAO obtained a
bachelor degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from
Soochow University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law
from the University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive
partner of Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAO is also
a director of Hua Yu Lien Development Co., Ltd (a company listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, formerly known as Fui
Industrial Co., Ltd. and was renamed on 19 June 2013). Mr. CHAO
has approximately 22 years’ experience in his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 54, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. KO graduated
with a Bachelor of Business Degree from Feng Chia University,
Taiwan, and subsequently obtained a Master of Science Degree
in Accounting from the University of Delaware, USA. Mr. KO has
been the executive partner of Weyong International CPAs & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. Mr. KO is also
the Independent Non-executive Director of Force-MOS Technology
Co.,Ltd. (an emerging-stock company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation), Kunyue Development Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded
company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) and Jourdeness
Group Limited. Mr. KO is currently a director of Taichung Season Arts
Education Foundation, Taiwan.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, 55, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHEN, holds a Master
of Business Administration Degree from the Eastern lllinois State
University, and a Bachelor Degree from the National Taiwan
University. Mr. CHEN is presently the Chairman of Ray Wing
Research and Investment Corporation. He has more than 27 years
of experience in securities business in Taiwan and was the Vice
Chairman and General Manager of Yuanta Securities Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd,. the Chairman of Concord Capital Management
Corp. and the Senior Vice President of Concord Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa, 61, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Group on 28 December 2012. Mr. HSIEH obtained a master degree
in management from National Chiao Tung University, Taiwan and
obtained a doctor degree in business management from National
Chengchi University, Taiwan. Mr. HSIEH is presently the vice-principal
and a professor of the Business Administration Department of
University of Dayeh University, Taiwan and a professor of the Business
Administration Department of University of Chung Yuan Christian
University, Taiwan. Mr. HSIEH is also the independent director of
Y.C.C. PARTS MFG. CO. LTD. (a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation) and the representative of legal entity as
director of First Commercial Bank, the member of remuneration
committee of Long Bon International Co., Ltd (a company listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) and the supervisor
of Weshare Education & Charity Fund. He was the supervisor of
Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Mr. HSIEH has approximately 22
years' working experience in the business management, strategic
management and technology management field.

The relationships of the following directors are as follows:

- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are brothers.

- Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou are brothers.
- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are cousins of Mr.

YANG, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, as well as Mr. YANG,
Chen-Wen.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HSIEH, Jau-Hwang, 65, our Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Strategy Officer of Vedan Vietnam. Mr. HSIEH graduated from the
National Cheng Kung University, major in accounting and finance.
Mr. HSIEH is responsible for the finance functions of the Group.
Mr. HSIEH has approximately 36 years of finance management
and banking experience. Mr. HSIEH worked for several financial
institutions in Taiwan and Vietnam including International Bank
of Singapore and ABN AMRO Bank. Mr. HSIEH was also a general
manager of ChinFon Bank, Ho Chi Minh City Branch. Prior to joining
us, Mr. HSIEH worked as the President in Gia Hen International Co.,
Ltd.

Mr. NI, Chih-Hao, 49, our Deputy Chief Financial Officer and the
Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the finance
functions of the Group. Mr. NI graduated from University of Oregon,
major in finance and marketing, and holds a master degree in
business administration from Tunghai University, Taiwan. Mr. NI joined
Vedan Group in 1993, and was the vice manager of business and
foreign trade department of Vedan Vietnam, special assistant to the
chairman, project manager of finance department of Taiwan Vedan
as well as the manager of the Group’s Taiwan branch. Mr. NI has full
qualification in finance, marketing and executive administration, and
has accumulated approximately 22 years of working experience.

Mr. CHAO, Wen-Jui, 51, general plant manager of the production
management department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for
managing and overseeing all production departments of the
company. Mr. CHAO graduated from National Tsing Hua University
with a master degree in chemistry. Mr. CHAO joined Taiwan Vedan
in 1987, and was the vice plant manager of a recycle plant and
the manager of a MSG plant. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 2009
as the vice general plant manager of the production management
department. Mr. CHAO has over 25 years of working experience in
the MSG and food additive industry.

Mr. HUANG, Chih-Yuan, 64, Vice President of food and amino
acid business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing and management functions of the company’'s amino
acid product business. Mr. HUANG graduated from National Tainan
Commercial Vocational Senior High School. Mr. HUANG joined
Taiwan Vedan in 1988 as business supervisor, and joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1993 as the senior manager of food and amino acid
business department. Mr. HUANG also served as the head of business
department of Ve Wong Corporation, and has over 27 years of sales
management experience in the food industry.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang, 53, Vice President of specialty chemicals
business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing planning and sales management of the company’s
specialty chemicals products. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang graduated from
National Taiwan University, major in economics. Mr. YANG, Tzu-
Chang joined Taiwan Vedan in 1991 as the assistant manager of
international trading department. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1996, and was the manager of amino acid business
division and marketing planning division. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang has
over 24 years of sales management experience in the food production
industry.

Mr. KO, Chung-Chih, 52, Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is
responsible for planning the overall management system and
overseeing the administration of the company. Mr. KO holds a master
degree in management from National University of Kaohsiung. Mr.
KO joined Taiwan Vedan in 1988, and had served as the supervisor
of the finance department. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 1991 as the
assistant manager of the finance department, and was subsequently
promoted to senior manager of the General Manager Office,
Corporate Administration Management Division. Mr. KO has 26 years
of working experience in finance and administration.

Mr. LIAO, Ruei-Hsing, 55, is the General Manager in charge of
the Group’s China operations. Mr. LIAO holds a Master Degree in
Business Administration from National Chengchi University. In the
past 24 years, he had held different senior executive positions in sales
and management in various multinational companies such as Coca-
Cola, Pepsi-Cola, Sara Lee and Bestfoods in Taiwan, the PRC, and the
Philippines.

Mr. LIN, Yu, 56, Vice President of Shanghai Vedan, is responsible for
sales and marketing planning. A graduate of Taipei Municipal Jianguo
High School, Mr. LIN joined Taiwan Vedan in 1989 first as a sales
executive, and then was promoted to sales manager. He started with
Shanghai Vedan Foods in 1994, and made it to the position of Vice
President in Sales. Mr. LIN has over 28 years of sales management
experience in the food production industry.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta, 41, senior manager of the Group’s Taiwan
Branch, is responsible for overseeing various aspects of the finance,
business and administrative function of the company. Mr. YANG,
Meng-Ta graduated from National Taiwan University with a bachelor
degree in civil engineering, and holds a master degree in civil
engineering from Pennsylvania State University. Mr. YANG, Meng-
Ta is also the director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Maotai. Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta joined Taiwan Vedan in 2001,
and was the supervisor of consumer product business department,
international trade department and finance department. He was
subsequently promoted to the senior manager of Taiwan branch. Mr.
YANG, Meng-Ta has accumulated extensive experience during his
service in various departments in the food production industry, and
has 14 years of management experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, 39, has been appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company from 1 April 2012. Ms. WONG is currently
a senior manager of the corporate services division of Tricor Services
Limited ("Tricor™). Prior to joining Tricor, Ms. WONG worked for Ernst
& Young and Tengis Limited in Hong Kong. Ms. WONG is a chartered
secretary and an associate member of both The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. Ms. WONG has over 16 years of experience.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves our corporate governance and internal controls practices.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

The positions of Chairman and CEO are held by Mr. YANG, Tou-
Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang respectively.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) is
responsible for leading the Board in establishing and monitoring
the implementation of strategies and plans to create values for
shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group's
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2014, there were 11 members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, the CEO, 3 other Executive Directors, 2
Non-executive Directors (“NED") and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs").

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The Board
considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant expertise
to the Board and its deliberations.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the
Group nor has any relationship with other directors and confirmed
their independence to the Group.

The relationships between some members of the Board are disclosed
under “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary” on page 24.
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The Board met regularly during the year. The Board’s primary
function is to set and review the overall strategic development of
the Group and to oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance
shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board met four times during the year and the
Directors’ attendance is shown in the table on page 33. The NED and
INEDs may take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense in carrying out their functions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference as suggested under the former Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee comprises Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-
Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa, all Independent
Non-executive Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee is
Mr. CHAOQO, Pei-Hong. Each member brings to the Committee his
valuable experience in reviewing financial statements and evaluating
significant control and financial issues of the Group who among
themselves posses a wealth of management experience in the
accounting profession, commercial and legal sectors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2014 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr.
CHAO Pei-Hong, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, the Non-executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. KO, Jim-Chen.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining/reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.

Details of the amount of Directors emoluments are set out in Note 31
to the accounts.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
Executive Director, Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen and
Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in accordance with the requirement set out in the CG Code.
Such policy aims to set out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board.

In assessing the Board composition and recommending candidates of
directors to the Board, the Nomination Committee would consider
a number of perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to professional qualifications, regional and
industry experience, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
gender and other characteristics.

The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
Annual General Meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the

code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

EEgaERT(REEBERTA) OTAIEX

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies EHEHRAAQTMNOCEEAMELTHR EF
and practices, training and continuous professional development REHEIEAEMNEIILBEERERRE AN T
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and HEETEREMEERT BT (LTETAEZES
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, #ETEAXSZHEESTR) ([ G2HESPE]) )
the compliance of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by N (B ERIXIE5]) AREST (DEEASTH])
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) and Written Employee  BEARMEEAREN BB R T HANBE LT
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and  #%°

disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

MEETINGS ATTENDANCE Bl FCss
Attendance/Number of Meeting
HEE/ERRY
Annual  Extraordinary
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
Ezg FitzEg yMzee REZEE RRAFAE REBHAE
Executive Directors HITES
YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) BRI (ZE) 3/4 NATER NATE R 7 0/1 0/
YANG, Cheng BIE 1/4 NATRER NATER NARER 0/ 0/
YANG, Kun-Hsiang (CFO) BRE(TREH) 414 NATEF NATE R NATEF " 01
YANG, Chen-Wen BRX 4/4 N/ATE N/AT 8 A N/ATE 0/1 0/1
YANG, Kun-Chou B 3/4 NATER NATER NATER 01 0/1
Non-executive Directors FUTES
HUANG, Ching-Jung BRA 414 NATE A 171 N/ATE A 0/1 111
CHOU, Szu-Cheng A% 4/4 N/AT N/AZ i A N/ATE A 0/1 0/1
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
CHAO, Pei-Hong BER 44 M n N 0 0/
KO, Jim-Chen EL:2 4/4 11 /1 0 171 11
CHEN, Joen-Ray RalE 4/4 11 11 10 0 0/
HSIEH, Lung-Fa AE% 44 Wy NATE B N/AT i B Wi 0/1
Notes: B 5

1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung authorized Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen to exercise the 1. BHEBEAERESRXAERE—XRESTEY

voting right on the first board meeting. Mr. YANG, Cheng authorized BITERAE - BEXAERBEEREEERSE
Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung to exercise the voting right on the first board —REFEERTRRARE-BERERES
meeting. Mr. YANG, Cheng authorized Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung to A ERERRENREETEERITER
exercise the voting right on the second and fourth board meetings. Mr. RIE-GHMNEERESRELERE=RE
YANG, Kun-Chou authorized Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiung to exercise the EeSRITERRE-

voting right on the third board meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

In respect of code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors of the
Company have developed and refreshed their knowledge and skills by
reading books and articles relating to legal and regulatory updates.

All Directors have already provided the training records for the year
ended 31 December 2014 to the company secretary.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPENDIX 14 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Save and except for code provision E.1.2 as set out below, the
Company has complied with the provisions of the CG Code during
the reporting period:

In respect of code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting and should
also invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees to attend. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, the Chairman of the
Board and Chairman of the Nomination Committee and Mr. CHAO,
Pei-Hong, Chairman of the Audit Committee were not able to attend
the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 20 May 2014
due to business commitments.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for
a specific term of 1 year or 3 years, where Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung
and Mr. CHAOQ, Pei-Hong were appointed for a term of 1 year and
Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and
Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa were appointed for a term of 3 years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years.
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COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Mode Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay approximately US$340,000 and
US$219,900 to the external auditor for their audit and non-audit
services respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company’s accounts for the year ended 31 December
2014.

The Statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 50 to 51.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Directors conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company, including
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. HSIEH,
Jau-Hwang, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Ms. WONG has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT TO CONVENE AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
after each shareholders’ meeting.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionst(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
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CONTACT DETAILS BigEE

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned MRERAIH LiliEHHBERKFT TRHEEXE -
above to the following:

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre, oAk BEZRANBEBR1835%
183 Queen’s Road East, & FH L5448
Hong Kong
(with attention to the Board of Directors) (FBERESFZW)
Fax: (852) 2528 3158 =1 (852) 2528 3158
Email: vdi@vedaninternational.com ESEGIN vdi@vedaninternational.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send A®REE BRELAFELZAEZTENEMER
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or RIS E AN EH (BB RME ) HIERKES
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their  #3xZE Fifitthar  WIRHFEZSH 2L BKE R
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect N EMER LM EBEHEBEWR - RQAFAIEE
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by LZRBAEBEWBEREER -

law.

LOOKING FORWARD RE

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards ~ ASEEGEE BRI ECEEGKFE TES
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary & #WB NREFTE M - ERETHBH AT
actions to ensure the compliance with the provisions of the CG Code 28 Hy (D EE AT KX -

introduced by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 9 to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December, 2014 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 56.

The Board has resolved not to recommend for shareholders’ approval
at its forthcoming annual general meeting the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: the same).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 16 to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December, 2014, the Company's share premium reserve
(subject to the Cayman Companies Law and the articles of association
of the Company) and retained earnings available for distribution to
the Company's shareholders are set out in Note 17 to the accounts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2014.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 17 to the accounts.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

38  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited k3 BIBE (425%) R A =

ARAEF([EFEMHERBE_T—NOF
ToA=Z+T - HALFENESEREREEZ
RE-

FEERH
ARARREREEBRAR EMBAREEREIN
BRI ERERER RMEANNE RAZR
MIXER EWNBRARIEXBNFBHRIIRN
ARBBTEE9 ©

HZEFEBREBEFELEEREE -

KBRSk
AEEHE_T-—NF+_A=+—HALFE
MEEHNESCEMIRA MEE -

EXQCRBTERREBE_FT—HF+=
A=T—RLEFENRMERE (ZF—=F "1
R)AEERERERREFAG LEH-

Bk &
ARBRAEHFHBHNKE ME16 -

a] ¢ 93 Ik &%
ARARRZZE—NFE+_A=+—BA#HHk
FARQBBREOBR D S EHE (REFAEHEA
BUARAR BB ERMAGE) RRERFEH
RERBKIEE17 »

ME - HEXMOES
ARARGHERMMBLARBERBEE TN
FTZA=Zt—BHLFEABE BOxLER
RRIHBAD

&% i
REBMEARARAFENHEEESEHARERE
MaE17 ©

ME- -BERRE
AEEYE BERRKBRANFEEHHFEH
RIS RA M ET -



Report of Directors

EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group purchased less
than 66% of its goods and services from its five largest suppliers
and sold less than 28% of its goods and services to its five largest
customers. At no time during the year, did a director, an associate
of a director or any shareholder of the Company, which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had an interest in the share capital of any of the
five largest customers or suppliers of the Company.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 3,764 employees,
3,471 of whom were employed by subsidiaries in Vietnam, 280 by
subsidiaries in the PRC and 13 by the Taiwan Branch. The Group's
employees are remunerated in accordance with prevailing industry
practices, and with reference to the financial performance of the
Group and performance of individual employees. Other fringe
benefits such as accommodations, meals, insurance, medical
coverage and provident fund are provided to employees to ensure
staff loyalty and the Group’s competitiveness. To enhance the quality
of human resources, bolster the professional skills and management
abilities of employees and build localised workforces, the Group
provides job rotation as well as internal and external training courses
and seminars on professional skills, languages, etc.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
YANG, Tou-Hsiung
YANG, Cheng
YANG, Kun-Hsiang
YANG, Chen-Wen
YANG, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
HUANG, Ching-Jung
CHOU, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
CHAO, Pei-Hong

KO, Jim-Chen

CHEN, Joen-Ray

HSIEH, Lung-Fa

According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen, Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou
and Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. All such Directors being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 24 to 29.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(@) As at 31 December, 2014, the interests of Directors of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQO"), were as follows:—

EEREREEERERE

EENRRERENMEFRNFE24E29E -

EEREM HEAROCREEEZEG N

R

(@ RZTE—OF+ZA=+—H AQF=F
ERAARIKETMEREAE (&R E
7 M HE DI EXVER) 2 B - MR
REEETHEAEZEROT —

Interests in shares
REROPzERE
Percentage of
issued shares
Number of of the Company

Name Capacity ordinary shares HERATE BT
%" E 56 ZER™E BRHABE DL
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
T BRI controlled by him (Notes 1 and 3)
REZEH T #Ew (P 7E1 R23)
Mr. YANG, Cheng Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
1B IE A& controlled by him (Notes 2 and 3)
REEH Z R Ew (MF3E253)
Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%
mEREKE EnEAA
Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong Beneficial owner 500,000 0.03%
HEIE R ExEAA
Notes: B
1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 1. B EBETFER TS TEKing

more than one-third of the voting power of King International Limited
("King International”). Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was therefore deemed to
have interest in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King

International.

2. Mr. YANG, Cheng was entitled to exercise or control the exercise
of more than one-third of the voting power of King International.
Mr. YANG, Cheng was therefore deemed to have interest in the

169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King International.

3. The interests that Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng had in
the 169,730,196 shares were of the same block of shares.

40 vedan International (Holdings) Limited k5 EIFE ($253) B R A &
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2. T E S A B RETTIR 3% H11TE King International
BB=92Z —HERAE - BELXERMBERAR
7 King Internationali% % 2 169,730,196 % A~ A
BRI A o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c¢) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; nor had they been
granted such rights.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. YANG, Cheng, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years
commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service agreements may
continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the
other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any
time thereafter.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed period of three years commencing on 8 March
2015.

Each of Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial
term of one year commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service
agreements may continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party to
the other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 31 May 2012.
Mr. Chou and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chou do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chou's appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.
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Mr. KO, Jim-Chen has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April, 2015.
Mr. Ko and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Ko do not agree to extend, the
service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original term
or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service agreement.
During the renewed term, Mr. Ko's appointment may be terminated
by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by either party to the
other.

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2015.
Mr. Chen and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chen do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chen’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.

Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three year commencing on 28 December
2012.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the service contracts detailed above, no director had a
material interest in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan
Vedan”)
For the year ended 31 December, 2014, the Company entered into

ERACEROERAIR ([EE%RA]) 2XSH

HE-ZT-—MF+ -_A=1+—HILFE &AAQF

the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted

continuing connected transactions of the Company and were subject

BEFTERREBEEALEERAET TR
5 MZEXPERBET LTRAEI14AZ R
WMEAEREZHEBERS  ARANERLE

to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A TR EIFBUUAEMN EREL BRAEE
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:
Note Us$'000
B 5 FET
A.  Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan . FRABKRSHEEER (i) 2,678
B.  Technological support fee paid to B. MABKSXZH (i) 2,267
Taiwan Vedan EMEE
C.  Agency commission income received C. WEaEKRSHRE (i) 16
from Taiwan Vedan el A
Agency commission expense paid to A AR AR (iii) -
Taiwan Vedan MeRx
Notes: P 5
(i)  The Group has been selling certain GA (acronym as “glutamic acid”), () AEEERMEERAREMBELF ( AEE
MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch based BERRIKRIN) ( [BEKSEH] ) HEET
industrial products to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries (other than DEE WREREAREBBRMD IEER UAHERSE

members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for use in Taiwan. On
23 December 2011,
agreement in respect of the sales of such products by the Group to the

the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an

Taiwan Vedan Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2014 (“Taiwan Sales Agreement”). At the relevant time,
the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of
sales of the products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the
maximum cap of US$3,000,000 for each of the three financial years
ending 31 December 2014. The Directors believe that the sale of goods
to the Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan Sales Agreement will

generate additional income to the Group.

US$2,678,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of sales
of the products by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$3,000,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 23 December 2011.

On 7 November 2014, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into
an agreement on substantially the same terms as the Taiwan Sales
Agreement (save and except that the cap will be increased from
US$3,000,000 to US$50,000,000) from 1 January 2015 to 31 December
2017.

BEA-R_T——F+=-A=+=8 %27
HAaERARASEERAERTSEEEZS
ERiUB# AT ——F—A—BEZ=T
—ME+—A=+—RA1t - BH=F ( [8E&H
EiEl ) cRBBRME AARGFTEEER
FTRERASEZFERESEISBAESE
%—m¢+,ﬁ:+—5¢:mwﬂirﬂ¢
zgﬁiﬁ3momﬁﬁh§$m¢ﬁﬁég
BRARE
IWK%%WAo

REZE-_ZT—WNF+_RA=+—HIEMBFE -
AEEMAERASEHEERIFERER
2,865,000k 7T W ARBBRERE-T——F
TZAZT=ZRZBERERFEEZRAES
_FFR3,000,000% 7T ©

RZZT—NF+—AtH AAREEEKH
BRAEHEHERNSMER 2GR (BRI ER
F13,000,0003€ 7T 3 i 2£50,000,0003E 7T 4 ) 5T
UhE B E-AF A BAE-_ZT—+F
+ZA=+—H1k-

Annual Report 2014 F #§

43



Report of Directors

EEERE

(i)

(iii)

The Taiwan Vedan Group has been providing certain technological
support services to the Group. On 23 December 2011, the Company
and Taiwan Vedan entered into an agreement in respect of the provision
of such services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term of
three years from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014 (“Technology
Support Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated
that the annual total aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant
to the Technology Support Agreement will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2014. The Directors believe that the technology support
from Taiwan Vedan Group will benefit the Group’s future business

developments.

US$2,267,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$2,500,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 23 December 2011.

On 7 November 2014, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement on substantially the same terms as the Technology Support
Agreement from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017.

Each of Taiwan Vedan and the Company has been acting as the sole
and exclusive agent of the other party to sell, distribute, supply and/
or provide the products that are produced or proposed to be produced
by the Group from time to time to the customers in Vietnam, ASEAN
countries and the PRC or in Taiwan (as the case may be). On 23
December 2011, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement (“Agency Agreement”) in respect of such transactions for a
term of three years from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014. At the
relevant time, the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate
amount of commission to be received by each of the Group and the
Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the maximum cap of US$150,000
and US$80,000 respectively for each of the three financial years ending
31 December 2014. The Directors believe that the Group will continue
to benefit from the transactions as the Group will receive additional
commission income, and, it will also continue to benefit from the
transactions in respect of additional sales to customers in Taiwan which
may not be satisfied by the production capacity of, or the available
products from, the Taiwan Vedan Group.

US$16,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of commission
received by the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2014,
which has not exceeded the relevant maximum cap of US$150,000 as
disclosed in the previous announcement dated 23 December 2011.
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Transactions with Shandong Xue Hua Bio-chemical Co., Ltd.
(“Xue Hua")

On 22 December 2005, Ordino Investments Pte Ltd (“Ordino”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Xue Hua entered into
a joint venture contract to set up a joint venture company, Shandong
Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd. (“JV Company”) in the PRC.
Upon the establishment of the JV Company, the JV Company
becomes a 70% non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Xue Hua, which holds 30% of the equity interest in the JV Company,

HBNREREMEIRBERIA([ER]) 2
x5

R_EERAF+_A=+=—8 ARa2EWE
A A Ordino Investments Pte Ltd ([Ordino | ) &2
ERVAEEH EFPBEKLAEEQRIILE
KRSEEEBRAR([AERRA]) KA
—UNCIEE /\M“TEXF%ZK BIEBTO% R
F2EMBRAR SHEANFEAEERABZ0%R
#RBEETRAUFI4ATE KAARG ZHEiE

becomes a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of A =*-°

the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, Ordino and the JV HBEZE—-Z—WN&E+_-F=+—HILFE Ordino

Company entered into the following transaction with Xue Hua, a &AL RQAFEARNT ZHEALSIEET N

connected person of the Company which constituted continuing %5 ﬂﬁﬁig/ %EE/\/,\&?J:?I?%EE‘J%MAE

connected transaction of the Company subject to the reporting and HREAEREZHFEBER S

announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Note RMB'000
B 5 ARBFTT

A. Purchase of certain raw materials A BERAIMSIEEEEST (i) 16
by the JV Company from Xue Hua R4 #

Notes: P&

(i) The JV Company has been purchasing certain raw materials (including (i) AERNRERASHEEESETEME (2R
GA, steam, electricity, starch and sulfuric acid) from Xue Hua. On 23 [ -EA BN BYREE) RZT——
December 2011, Ordino, Xue Hua and the JV Company entered into F+=—A=+=H 0rdinoTILREE QA
an agreement in respect of the purchase of such raw materials by the MEERRNBILBEZSREMBT L H#
JV Company from Xue Hua (“Raw Materials Purchase Agreement”) for (IEMBERBHE]) SGHHE T ——F

a term of three years from 28 December 2011 to 27 December 2014
(with the JV Company’s right to renew for successive terms of three
years each until the end of the term of the JV Company subject to
compliance with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules).
At the relevant time, the Company estimated that the annual total
aggregate amount of the raw materials to be purchased by the JV
Company from Xue Hua pursuant to the Raw Materials Purchase
Agreement will not exceed the maximum cap of RMB15,000,000
for each of the three financial years ending 27 December 2014. The
Directors are of the view that such transactions will provide cost benefits

to the Group for its GA and MSG manufacturing businesses.

RMB16,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of the
raw materials purchased by the JV Company from Xue Hua for the
financial year ended 31 December 2014, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of RMB15,000,000 as disclosed in the previous

announcement dated 23 December 2011.
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Confirmations

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2014 have been reviewed by Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 43 to 46 of the annual report in
accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

So far as known to the Company, as at 31 December, 2014, other
than the interests of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had interests in the shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREMzEGBLKE

BARBRMM R_F—HF+_A=1+—8"
BEXFEBEARRESTHZITHRABNE
s U TALTRARRRO T HEBREES K
HERPIEXVERSE2 R 35 8 2 SR MA R
AREOED AR RRREZH R AE K
BIZE336lGMIFE 2 B MA s

Percentage of
issued shares

Number of of the Company
Name Capacity ordinary shares EEAFE
=8B 514 ZEREAE BITROBOL
Billion Power Limited (“Billion Power") Beneficial owner 512,082,512 33.62%
BB A (Note 1)
(PfF3ET)
Vedan Enterprise Corporation Interest held by its controlled 512,082,512 33.62%
(“Taiwan Vedan"”) corporation
R EEROAERDR ([AEKA]) REZEG ¥R
King International Beneficial owner 169,730,196 11.15%
ERMAA
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
ERMAA
High Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%

BamHEA A
Notes:
1. Billion Power was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan. Taiwan

Vedan was therefore deemed to be interested in these 512,082,512

shares held by Billion Power.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Company, as at
31 December 2014, no other person (not being a Director or chief
executives of the Company) had any interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

=

1. Billion Power & & ER N2 EHB AR WE
LR FH %48 A A % 2 mBillion Powerfi#A 2
512,082,512 B 10 2 #E %5 ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Five Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
YANG, Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG,
Kun-Chou were also directors of the Group’s controlling shareholder,
Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, YANG,
Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG, Kun-Chou
indirectly held approximately 19.77 percent., 9.89 percent., 6.18
percent., 8.24 percent, and 6.18 percent. interest in Taiwan Vedan,
respectively and they were therefore considered as having an interest
in Taiwan Vedan under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group’s business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio™).

Since Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and YANG, Cheng are both
responsible only for the overall strategic planning and the business
development of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily
operations of the Group are managed by Messrs. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
and YANG, Chen-Wen together with an independent management
team. In Taiwan Vedan, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is mainly responsible
for the sales of the products of the Company and products of other
companies which the Company acts as an agent within Taiwan. In the
Group, he provides guidance and assistance for selling the Group’s
products the sales of in Vietnam and the PRC markets. Taiwan Vedan
and the Group are operated by separate sales teams which are
independent of each other, while market segmentation shall comply
with the details of the territorial delineation agreement signed by
the Group and Taiwan Vedan. The Directors are of the view that
the management and the operational functions of the Group are
independent of and separate from those of other members of the
Taiwan Vedan Group.
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For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non-  AREAEENZ  ARTBYIERTEEZLE
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would I ZESTFEHBTAEE 2 EB KL EE
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the AR (Hh ) RER 2 E R RV ES B
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s business operations in I J & K FH A T2 &E - W #5448 anitt -
respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the

basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of

Taiwan Vedan.

AUDITOR % B Em

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who 7B B D&M E LR KBS EHEZ
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. ZAZHEEmER MRTEEEEET-

By Order of the Board AEESH

YANG, Kun-Hsiang IR e

Director and Chief Executive Officer BEFHFITHAE

24 March 2015 —ET-hF=A=+WH
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BEN R E

_E
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vedan
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 141, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

R AKE
BTk EM (2B RAARK
(KB EREHMATHERAF)

Az BN (AT (5 AF)) | TIENF52
EIMERAREE (ZER)ARAF (AT HE
[ERA) D) REMBAR (5l [ 556 BOE
PHBHE  WAHYBHRREEN _F—0F
T-A=+T-"HEMAHMAREEREREAE
EZRALFENAFEREE AMHEARESR
EHEZEBRIAFRERER URTEE
AR E R E MM AR AR

EEZHEHUBBRRARENER

BERAEFERERBERAEETMASHEMDN
EREMBRELNREERRGHNKERE
REAHMBERER UWSEHUBRRIELER
MAFHRER  MEBEERSREAHIBEHRER
Frus RN ERIES] AR A GHEI B IER T FHER
P HRRF S8R R T 28 BIURO B K84 RR R A -

BB AT B
BPNEERRERMNBIHZZEHMB
BRIFHER W EMRBEBRRRE Rz
AHEFEEMBN - BRI TERARENAR
FEREMALTE FRAEERNEE-

BMERBEEGHMIERMOE BRI L
APETTEG - ZFRAEZREFIETBRAR
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E R E

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

circumstances,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2014, and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December

R+=-—HA=+—8
2014 2013
—ZT-mF —T—=
Note uUs$‘000 Us$'000
B 7 FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Land use rights -+ Hh {5 B A 6 2,767 2,624
Property, plant and equipment M- WEREE 7 167,220 126,708
Intangible assets mEEE 8 9,822 11,163
Long-term loan and receivables REFE R fERRIA 13 165 117
Investment in an associate R—HEEERRZEE 10(a) 3,393 3,490
Total non-current assets IRBEELE 183,367 144,102
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 12 104,775 115,202
Trade receivables EUE 5 R 13 25,981 30,741
Amount due from the non- JE UL — fE BT /B 2 /)
controlling interest of a subsidiary FEPE N M % 2 SRIE 933 1,445
Short-term loan to an associate LT —HEBEARZ 10(b),
REIE R 35(d) - 96
Amount due from an associate U — B E R R ZHIE  10(c),
35(d) 123 -
Prepayments and other receivables TE A FRIE R HoA FEHGRIE 13 14,986 14,311
Amount due from a related party JE—2BFBEBALZ
RIE 35(d) 1,146 -
Restricted cash ZPRHIEE 14(b) 4,249 4,264
Short-term bank deposits RMHEITER 14(a) 3,463 3,013
Cash and cash equivalents HBekReEEY 14(a) 37,491 39,496
193,147 208,568
Disposal group held for sale BESEARNZEE 15 1,926 -
Total current assets RBEELE 195,073 208,568
Total assets EEHAE 378,440 352,670
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to owners of EATREEAEEER
the Company
Share capital % 7 16 15,228 15,228
Reserves ] 17 253,901 256,677
269,129 271,905
Non-controlling interest FEFE IR M AR (2,030) (1,748)
Total equity ERAE 267,099 270,157

52  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk BB (#28) BR A 7



Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2014 2013
—ZT-IF —F—=
Note uUs$‘000 Us$'000
B 7 FEx FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 19 32,696 2,074
Deferred income tax liabilities REMESHEE 20 4,772 5,357
Retirement benefit obligations BRIRENEE 30 1,214 1,169
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERE 38,682 8,600
Current liabilities REBEE 18
Trade payables EBRESER 18 14,546 14,590
Accruals and other payables EEAERLREMERMNZKIE  35(d) 18,331 14,975
Amount due to a related party JEN — BB REALTRIE 19 - 313
Bank borrowings RITIEE 38,857 43,085
Current income tax liabilities BERFT SR B & 925 950
Total current liabilities BB EHEEE 72,659 73,913
Total liabilities EERE 111,341 82,513
Total equity and liabilities ERREEREE 378,440 352,670
Net current assets RBEEFRE 122,414 134,655
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAEBERTBEE 305,781 278,757

The financial statements on pages 52 to 141 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2015 and were

signed on its behalf.

BREREIMNBEZHBERECEEFER T-—AF A - +HAERITHFINALRRES-

YANG, Tou-Hsiung
L
Director

EFE

YANG, Kun-Hsiang
B
Director

EFE

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
BNFECOR 1AM BN LTI A Mgk m — &b -
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Balance Sheet

EERRRK

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—8
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
Note us$'000 Us$'000
b FEx FET
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets RBEE
Intangible assets mVEE 8 201 1,410
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRARIZERE 9(a) 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate R—HEBERR 2
& 10(a) 3,788 3,788
Loan to subsidiaries BTHBRR ZER 9(b) 7,218 2,218
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 177,237 173,446
Current assets REBEE
Loans to subsidiaries BB RRIZER 9(b) = 54
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NP ENGIE S 9(b) 38,738 41,640
Short-term loan to an associate By —REBE QAR 2 10(b),
REIE 35(d) - 96
Amount due from an associate FE U — [ B & 2 ) 10(c),
FRIE 35(d) 123 -
Prepayments and other receivables TE A FIE R
H & WskE 13 1,702 1,888
Short-term bank deposits RHISRITE R 14(a) 2,059 2,066
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 14(a) 909 1,076
Total current assets REBEELAE 43,531 46,820
Total assets EEHAE 220,768 220,266
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of ZIN/NEIE 2N
the Company FE(L R
Share capital % < 16 15,228 15,228
Reserves ] 17 195,023 201,037
Total equity RSB 210,251 216,265

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited

B (ER)BRAE



Balance Sheet

EERRRK

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+-—H
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=fF
Note us$‘000 Us$'000
B 7 FEx FET
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables EAERKE
H & 1+ 5008 18 1,241 1,186
Bank borrowings RITHE 19 9,276 2,502
Amount due to a related party e —BEEAL
FRIE 35(d) - 313
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 10,517 4,001
Total equity and liabilities ERREEEE 220,768 220,266
Net current assets REBEEFE 33,014 42,819
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 210,251 216,265

The financial statements on pages 52 to 141 were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2015 and were

signed on its behalf.

HRERRIMNE I BBREACEEFEN - AF A - THAERITHTINALTRRESE-

YANG, Tou-Hsiung
BRI
Director

EF

YANG, Kun-Hsiang
15 iR
Director

EF

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

BFNFECOR 1AM BN TR A M sk M — &b -
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER
Year ended 31 December 2014 HEZE—ZT—NF+-_A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=1+—BHLEE
2014 2013
—EB-NEF —E-—=
Note Us$‘000 Us$'000
B 7 FEx FET
Revenue g 21 325,627 342,453
Cost of sales & KA 23 (281,511) (294,364)
Gross profit EX 44,116 48,089
Other gains — net H Y as — 558 22 870 1,156
Gain on disposal of non-current assets &S FHEH S IE R E)
held for sale BE W - 986
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX 23 (22,627) (23,279)
Administrative expenses T 23 (23,491) (24,637)
Operating (loss)/profit g (BE) RF (1,132) 2,315
Finance income B B A 643 981
Finance costs B RS (910) (742)
Finance (costs)/income — net MR () WA~
R 24 (267) 239
Share of post-tax loss of an associate JE (5 — R B2 QA
MRELzER 10(a) (97) (32)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEHAT (BE)
g (1,496) 2,522
Income tax expense FriSfi X 25 (1,432) (1,794)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (FE), B 26 (2,928) 728
(Loss)/profit attributable to: TR &5 EMN (EB)
Ve vk
Owners of the Company KARHEE A (2,434) 1,488
Non-controlling interest e (494) (760)
(2,928) 728
Earnings per share for (loss)/profit EATEBEAELER
attributable to the owners of the (BR) #mAz
Company during the year (expressed HRER (UER
in US cents per share) EWFIR)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share EREXR (FE),
R 28 (0.16) 0.10
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SR (58)
ER 28 (0.16) 0.10

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HNFEEOR1M BN TGRS M sk — &b -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEZERER

Year ended 31 December 2014 HZEZZT—NF+=-A=+—HILtFE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLFE
2014 2013
—2-WmF —F-=%
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (EBR)HEF (2,928) 728
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKA
ltem that may be reclassified to AIEHHEEEE A
profit or loss
Currency translation differences VEH =58 (285) 1,770
Other comprehensive income EFEERBEEMEZEBA
for the year, net of tax (285) 1,770
Total comprehensive income AFEEZEHRALRE
for the year (3,213) 2,498
Total comprehensive income UTEFEGMEFEE
for the year attributable to: ZHEIRAELE:
— Owners of the Company S VNEIE F =N (2,715) 3,236
- Non-controlling interest —FEERE S (498) (738)
Total comprehensive income KEEXEBABLTE
for the year (3,213) 2,498

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HNEEOR 14BN LTI R A M IS R — &b 1) -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREEX

Year ended 31 December 2014 HEZZT—NF+-_A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDEEE AL
Non-
Share Share Other Merger Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
B R EE Hibfte AHHRE REBA ax  FERER BEEE

US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 Us$'000 US§'000 US§'000 US$'000
TET e TET e TERL TER TERL TET

Balance at 1 January 2013 RoE-ZE-A-H7H8 15,28 47,358 15,438 79,994 114,392 272,410 (10100 271,400
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF/ (FB) - - - - 1,488 1,488 (760) 728
Other comprehensive income Hit2EUA
Currency translation differences EREE - - 1,748 - - 1,748 2 1,770
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2ERA / (F) A% - - 1,748 - 1,488 3,236 (738) 2,498
Total transactions with owners BREEACBRSE
Dividends paid relating to 2012 and “R-—fR-T-ZF

2013 interim period THAEZERRE - - - - (3,741) (3,741) - (3,741)
Balance at 31 December 2013 RZZB-Z#+ZA=+-H2

] 15,228 47,358 17,186 79,994 112,139 271,905 (1,748) 270,157

Balance at 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-A-AzE&8 15,228 47,358 17,186 79,994 112,139 271,905 (1,748) 270,157
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Loss for the year rERER - - - - (2,434) (2,434) (494) (2,928)
Other comprehensive income Hit2ERA
Currency translation differences ERER - - (281) - - (281) () (285)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EHR A/ (F#&) BE - - (281) - (2,434) (2,715) (498) (3.213)

Total transactions with owners BEFAZARSE
Changes in ownership interests in a DEEY RS B AR
subsidiary without change of control ~ HEB AEREE (K37)
(Note 37) - - (61) - - (61) 216 155

Balance at 31 December 2014 BR-B-ME+=A=t-H2
E] 15,228 47,358 16,844 79,994 109,705 269,129 (2,030 267,099

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
HNFEEOR1A BN LTI R A M sk — &b -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-HLEE

2014 2013
—E-QmEF —E-=F
Note us$’000 US$ 000
{hg=d FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBZHERE
Cash generated from/(used in) ¥BEE/ (B2
operations e 32 36,092 (2,420)
Interest received [=RLE NS 643 981
Interest paid B F B (910) (707)
Income taxes paid =ENRIEET! (2,042) (4,068)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KEEBESE
operating activities (PR 2R & FER 33,783 (6,214)
Cash flows from investing activities REFTHZHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE WELEHE
equipment 7 (61,138) (7,848)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEWE BEM&E
plant and equipment Z TS RUIE 32 12 10
Proceeds from sale of non-current HEBIEHE Y HERD
assets held for sale EBEZNEHRE 32 - 2,886
Purchases of intangible assets BEEREEE 8 (25) (25)
Purchases of land use rights BE TR 6 (219) (406)
(Increase)/decrease in short-term RHSEITER
bank deposits (), wmd 14(a) (450) 4,374
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash PR HIEE &
W () 14(b) 15 (4,264)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term loanto 4 ¥ — M E A E 2
an associate REEFRL
(58 ) 96 (96)
Increase in investment in an associate R—EBE AR ZEE
30 10(a) - (480)
Net cash used in investing activities REFSMACHES TR (61,709) (5,849)
Cash flows from financing activities mﬂ!ﬁfiﬁibzfﬁﬁmu;
Dividends paid BEAIRE 27 - (3,741)
Proceeds from bank borrowings ﬁE?ﬂ%%ﬁFﬁ%?ﬁ( 158,496 70,838
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (132,102) (58,898)
Net cash from financing activities BMEEBMSEHE 58 26,394 8,199
Net decrease in cash and fﬁﬁﬁfi%%ﬁ%
cash equivalents W FE (1,532) (3,864)
Cash and cash equivalents E"E%ﬂzfi{ﬁﬁ
at beginning of year ReEEY 14(a) 39,496 42,567
Exchange (loss)/gains on cash and ReERkREEBY2
cash equivalents N (&iE) e (160) 793
Cash transferred to disposal group Lﬁéi?—rf’ﬁﬁ%
held for sale HEHRZRE (313) -
Cash and cash equivalents RERZRER
at end of year B&EEY 14(a) 37,491 39,496

The notes on pages 60 to 141 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG"), soda,
acid and beverages. The products are sold to food distributors,
international trading companies, and manufacturers of food,
paper, textiles, and chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN
member countries, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
Japan, Taiwan, and several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$"), unless otherwise stated. These financial
statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 24 March 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

60 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk EIRE (3258) BRA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 BREERIFTEGTRFEE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mBEEE (F)

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this
financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) The following new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards are mandatory for the
Company for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2014, but have not had
any significant impact on the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

A BFERERLBHE 276 M5
WRIIBER CRFHER) CEHIZE
NE)MERRERE -

RENET BV B RE LR
BERFBRERETEENEHEF
MEREERBAEE 2S5 BE
BREPNFZELHE - P RBEE
ML S E A 2 S SEAR
AR BHRRBERN 2 BRI 1T
KM A T AR -

(@) ARAEBRHN —F—HF—
A—BRBZMBFEREERE
RToIH R 2R ER 2
BFT EX EHREMBRER
CREELTANEATE -

HKFRS 10, Investment Entities ERHBREER KREER
HKFRS 12 and £10% B8
HKAS 27 (2011) B4R
Amendment FNRREE
SERRAE27H
(Z2——%)
(71 R)
HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets B g ER BHEVBEER
Amendment and Financial Liabilities £32% HBasE
(EFT )
HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount EA e ER FHMBEENYR
Amendment Disclosures for Non- £36% F&Es KR
Financial Assets (BETA)
HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and BB ER fTEIAZ
Amendment Continuation of Hedge £395 R R
Accounting (BETR) SEZEE
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies Eh (BRSBR BB

tREZEg)
—2EFN®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERIEGHBREE (8)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b)  The following new standards and amendments to (b)
standards have been issued, but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 January 2014
and have not been early adopted.

21 mBEEE (F)

UTREBRMELIFFN-F
—ME-A-BRBZERE
AR B IR A SR 2 2
Al R R ZERT

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after

RTIBEHHzE
R artEEER
HKAS 19 (2011) Amendment  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee 1 July 2014
Contributions
ARG ERE195% EEBAEE - EEHK —ET-mHFELA—H
—E——F) (BFTX)
Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle 1 July 2014
FREUERT 2 “E-EFEE-_FRAPCFESE —T-HFEA—H
Annual Improvements Project  Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle 1 July 2014
FREUUERTE TE-—FECTZ-—FRPCFENE —T-HFtH-—H
Annual Improvements Project ~ Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016
FREUGEE “E-ZFE_T-NFBPrFENE —T-RF-A—H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
BBV REERNE 1455 EERLERA —ET-XR¥—-HA—H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Amendment

BEVBREENFEI0% K
BAGFERIE285%
(BETA)

HKFRS 11 Amendment

BEMBMEEREI15
(EFTA)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Amendment

EEGHERE165 K
BB ERF385
(BETA)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

HEEMABENRNEECEZBNE
EREIEE

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations

WEAEXRG D 2t RE

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

EBARXZITERBHETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTEFTBREE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mBEEE (F)
(b)  (continued) (b)y (#&)
Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after
RTHBEHHz2E
Rz astPEEEN
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016
Amendment
BEBEGERE 165 R BE EEMNEDY —E-RF-A—H
BB G ER B4R
CEHEN
HKAS 27 Amendment Equity Method in Separate Financial 1 January 2016
Statements
EB R ERE275 ERU BRIz ERE —E-RF—-HA—H
CEHEN
HKAS 1 Amendment Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
BB ERE IR B EEET & —E-RF¥—-HA—H
(EETA)
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment entities: applying the 1 January 2016
HKAS 28 consolidation exception

BB B REENEI105 REER BERAGHRE
BAEMGRELENF125
BB ERFE28%

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
BB W EERE1558 KEEFPAHZ W

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

BBV BREERNER SEMTHE

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of adopting the above new standards
and amendments to standards. The Group is not yet
in a position to state whether substantial changes
to the Group's accounting policies and financial
statements presentation will result.

—T-RF—HA—H
1 January 2017
—E—+F—-H—H
1 January 2018
—E-NF¥—-HA—H

45 2 599 A R
R BRI 2 B K
EEMREETREEORE
2 BRI RE 2 2
SR EREALD -

Annual Report 2014 3§ 63



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

(0

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from
the Company's first financial year commencing on
or after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section
358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process
of making an assessment of expected impact of
the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the
consolidated financial statements in the period of
initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). It has concluded
that the impact is unlikely to be significant and only
the presentation and the disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements will be
affected.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERTFETHREREE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE(E)

o - AR IR 3T E B D B B
(EDIE622%F ) E3581& &
AMEFI 950 [k B M| /Y
BERARRE-_Z—NFE=
A=Az %FAnrE @K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

2

RREERFERHBREE (W)

22 KMiEBRAE (&)
22146 (#)

(a)

XHa b

AEBERBKBETE
EBAM-WBHER
ANERRE/MEE
BE - WKBTHESR
EMELRBERAKE
P TRIR AN HE S B R F
BREE FEEREER
REARELHELEN
TMEERRBENRF
B REBE HEMK
R 1O A] BRI B B K P
EWRBERIREE
MNEREE RO RFE
FFE-AEEREBRK
AR ERR W UE T 3F

AR S o

REBIZE B W REEE
RN KB 2 M
FEER R NP
TR R
RERE BETHAE
AN RBRERR
ik EEZFE T
PARFESR R A
AR BB 77 7T BBl B
FECER BRI
D 2 B EHE bR 3F
EREMBHREENBRE
EREMFEEE T
AP H A SR A M 25
BB 1 AR F R B B
HZ RNFEFE-

Ugt 7% A 8 B AN E E A
e

Annual Report 2014 £3§ 65



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

22 KMiEBRAE (&)
22146 (#)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries (b)y WEBBITHIESE

without change of control MEBARIHEE AERE
EJ)

Transactions with non-controlling interests EIEERE S EIT I A
that do not result in loss of control are EEYPREEFRIR
accounted for as equity transactions — that HSARINERERZ S
is, as transactions with the owners in their BB ANEEAS D
capacity as owners. The difference between ET2ZRG - AMER
fair value of any consideration paid and the REZAFEERNE
relevant share acquired of the carrying value NEEEFEREEM
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in BREZHENEZZR
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non- P 2 ABR o A FEIE R
controlling interests are also recorded in EmbEZRBETIIR
equity. R AR

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries (00 HEWBAT

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), or financial
asset (Note 2.10). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHBREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

22 MEAR (&)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses including
those relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other gains — net'.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERTFETHREREE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation 25 SHEEBRE
(a)  Functional and presentation currency (a) WEERZEHRE
Items included in the financial statements of each AEEZERBZUBHREM
of the Group's entities are measured using the BEZER DRZEREKS
currency of the primary economic environment FrIEs TERLBERFECEE
in which the entity operates (“the functional (ITheeEH )t 2 - KNEadt
currency”). The consolidated financial statements BREUARRB ZNEEEE R
are presented in US$, which is the Company's AEEBZE2HREEETET-
functional and the Group's presentation currency.
(b)  Transactions and balances (b) XFZRAZE
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

- Properties 20-50 years
- Plant and machinery 10-20 years
- Motor vehicles 5-8 years
- Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘other gains — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERTFETHREREE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.7 Intangible assets 27 EBREE
(a)  Goodwill (a) BEE
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries G NSNS S-S
and represents the excess of the consideration WHEMEZERRE  REEER
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 2 (EA] JE 1 B e 2 DA J2 S AT S
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair WIHE T 2 IR A=A R
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree Hz AV EBEHTKEND#
over the fair value of the identified net assets RIEEFEAFEZHE-
acquired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill RETRENR REKEH
acquired in a business combination is allocated PURE B DEETERR
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), BRE B R M 2 & BREUIR
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the BN ([HRIRSBA]) K
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of —HRBRE B - ZESR
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents MBZENR—HENAERE
the lowest level within the entity at which the RARNEREREE 2 HEE
goodwill is monitored for internal management TH o BB RS R D AL B T #EAT
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating BE8o
segment level.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken PETFETRERS TE
annually or more frequently if events or changes REEHLRREASNEBRT
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. AIEE IR R E R - fFE B A
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the A eoEmEAREERETKE S
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value HHEE BAEHREBRHEAT
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any BEREENA 2B =E - A[
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense BERNRER AR BHE
and is not subsequently reversed. TEfE -
(b)  Trademarks, brand name and licence (b) BE mMEEERER
Separately acquired trademarks, the brand name BUWE BT DEEER
and the licence, which have finite useful lives, SR AARERFEAFE I
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation BB B #ERRES
and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated BAR-#HE OB ESER
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost - ABEE mEaE kT
of trademarks, brand name and licence over their AR AR ENFEE+F 5T
estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 years. AIEREAETDE
(c)  Computer software (c) EBIEEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Disposal group held for sale

Disposal group is classified as held for sale when its
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a
sale is considered highly probable. It is stated at lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Financial
assets, which are classified held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in Note 2.

Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables, based on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 M%EE (#)
2.10.1 548 (#&)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.1 Classification (continued)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise trade
and other receivables (Note 2.12), cash and cash
equivalents (Note 2.13), amount due from the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary, long-term loan
and receivables, short-term loan to a related party,
restricted cash, short-term bank deposits, loans to
subsidiaries, amounts due from subsidiaries, amount
due from a related party and amount due from an
associate in the balance sheet.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Loans and receivables are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

2.10.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty.
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e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHBREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

210 M¥EEE (#)
2.104 &

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.4 Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10

2.11

2.12

Financial assets (continued)

2.10.4 Impairment (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’'s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BEHRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BEHRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax

(b)

(M)

(if)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

218 EMRIELEFREHR (H)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the end of the reporting period. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related
pension obligation. In countries where there is no
deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.
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# 35
ELMEHEERABERA
EITEZ MG RIBEE
HEHIRIRAEEMEE A
EEMBHREENRABIIER
F A — 750 7% # B ) A — FE AR A%
ERXTRAERMERBE 2
et BRRFREERE
R TR EAEEE -

219 EERTH

(a)

BT AL

REHRFEEAAEBRIEL
BN EEHRRZIBRAKRESE
Eo-MRETAREETRN
A& 8 & A SoB & B &
BEREHEBIEN AEE
I B AR — SRR TE i
EEE-RERMGE AR
TEBRAERRTEZRRE

AHEle

—RME REBMASSE
E R B RIRE U 2 BRIk S
TR ARESE - RIURR —
fEsk % @R = a0 F ik R
FERME -

REERBBERARRERNE
KReftERRZBERARER
MEERBERRE 2HE -
AEBNETZRERELR
AlfEZ (ARN AR ER
HE BFHERARERRER
EFHEE) 2R R
AXREREEH -EZXFE
FAB|RAT IS ZBIR - AlfE
RBRERZ TS X

Annual Report 2014 £ 81



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

82 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk £+ BIR (3258

Pension obligations (continued)

The current service cost of a defined benefit plan,
recognised in the income statement in employee
benefit expense, except where included in the cost
of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined
benefit obligation results from employee service in
the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2.20

practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Contingent liabilities and provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability, if any, is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

2.20

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERTFEFHRREE (1)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 219 EERR (&)
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e M BEHRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHBREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

221 BRKWERHE A A
Wiz B Wk B E 2 A FER

2.21 Revenue and other income recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

2.22

received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23

2.24

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
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e M HRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

(a)

0]

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Vietnam Dong against US$.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations, which the Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 December 2014, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax (loss)/profit for the year would
have been US$834,000 (2013: US$610,000)
higher/lower (2013: lower/higher), mainly as
a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.
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e M HRRME

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@)  Market risk (continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk, which the directors consider the
exposures to be insignificant. The Group
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

At 31 December 2014, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax (loss)/profit for the year would
have been US$316,000 (2013: US$216,000)
higher/lower (2013: lower/higher), mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate borrowings.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, amount due from
the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary, other
receivables and amount due from related parties.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories. The Group has policies to assess
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, amount due from the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary and other
receivables included in the consolidated balance
sheets represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to these financial assets.

For bank deposits and bank balances, the Group
only uses banks and financial institutions with good
reputations. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 14 are held
in major financial institutions, which are either state
owned or with high credit quality. Management
believes that the credit risk for bank deposits and
bank balances is minimal.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the amount
due from the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
is neither past due nor impaired. Given that all the
balance is within credit period, management are of
opinion that the receivable from the non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary is of low credit risk.

No impairment has been provided for other
receivables as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Management are of opinion that these balances are
of low credit risk.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
(Note 14) on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 MBERRTE(R)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEEREBEE (&)
(c)  Liguidity risk (continued) () RBEDERE
The table below analyses the Group's and the THRRIEEH = %"J@Jﬁﬂ
Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity H &2 T B 1L'H$/§ l&$
groupings based on the remaining period at the ZHBBES RIEH ‘Jﬁﬁiﬁﬁu
balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The ETHOM - REEHEBZS
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BHAABNANBRREGRE -
undiscounted cash flows.
Group REE
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
-FR -5ZME WEERE BBLE At
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FET TER TER FER FET
At 31 December 2014 e ks
+-A=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (M) 40,276 9,268 22,017 3,612 75,173
Trade payables ERESER 14,546 - - - 14,546
Other payables and HibFERFIE R
accruals [EEE R 11,298 - - - 11,298
At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=%
+=RA=1-H
Bank borrowings (Note) BITEE () 44,045 1,266 54 887 46,252
Trade payables ERESER 14,590 - - - 14,590
Other payables and Hib R HIER
accruals &R 5,510 - - - 5,510
Amount due to a Fﬁ LEHEAL
related party HIE 313 - - - 313
Company AT
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
-FR -5ZME WEERE BBRE A&t
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET TER TER TER FET
At 31 December 2014 T
+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) BITEE (M) 9,486 - - - 9,486
Other payables and Hib R FIAR
accruals B ER 389 - - - 389
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+TZA=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (M) 2,571 - - - 2,571
Other payables and HiERFIER
accruals [EitER 350 - - - 350
Amount due to a H LEBEEAT
related party HE 313 - - - 313
Note: B 5
The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings FHREHPEHES D BB MR

up to their respective maturities.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
owners’ equity as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet. Total borrowings include non-current borrowings
and current borrowings.

During 2014, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2013, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio.
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were
as follows:

MBREER (&)

3.2

EXEmER
AEEERES ZBRRREARE
Bt BARTEEREE 28 U
RBREGEREBRBRIEFEA®
TR ARGRAE BEARGEEIA
B BB o

RTHRFAREERGERE AREA
BEREIRN TRRZBESHE MR
RBEERN BOHBROHILEERE
VAR R (B 7 o

HENHEMAR] - AEENEE
BELESEEERER X
HABEERBERM R ZERTEE
BRUAER NERFE - REEBREIE
mBEBEERABEER-

RZZE—OF AEBEZRIEHE_-T
—=FRMNEER R A
EEEHEREEKFE R -_ZE—N
FR=—F—=Ff+=-A=+—82

AEABLLELT:
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—EF-HmE —T=F
Us$’000 Us$'o00
FEx F=Ex
Total bank borrowings (Note 19) BIRITEE (MFE19) 71,553 45,159
Owners’ equity (including non- B AR
controlling interest in equity) (BIEIAREZ 2
JEREIR ) 267,099 270,157
Gearing ratio BEAMRLE 27% 17%

The increase in gearing ratio is mainly due to increase in
bank borrowings for financing construction of property,
plant and equipment. Management considers that the
current gearing ratio is reasonable.

BERBLXELATZRBNARE
EME BERRBREESSRT
fERIEM ERERRAREERRE
LEREAIE
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
their short maturities. The fair values of financial assets
and liabilities for disclosure purposes are estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 8).

(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

4

EEE AR AE (&)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and (b) ME - BERIENMEFTHE (&)
equipment (continued)
The recoverable amount of the property, plant and M WE K EE 2 T E & R R
equipment is determined based on value-in-use EREBEFEREMETE - 25T
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow BEhERERENZ AFHTB
projections based on financial budgets approved EEZBRBARESREBANSE
by management covering a five years period. These ZEGERGER EEL A R
calculations and valuations require the use of judgements i e
and estimates.
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations AU EFEAEEZEEZERRIOT -
are as follows.
Vietham
=]
2014 2013

—E—-NEF —ET-=%F
Selling price growth rate EEERX 7% 5% - 10%
Discount rate iR % 10% 10%
Long term growth rate RERX nil & nil s
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and (00 V¥ BERRENEFEENSER

intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets by reference to the estimated periods
that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of these assets. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets of
similar nature and functions. Management will adjust
the depreciation and amortisation charges where useful
lives vary from previously estimates. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in useful lives and therefore
depreciation and amortisation expense in the future
periods.

1
AEENERESEAEEAER
MAZEEEDS R REBENm A
SHEH BEEWE  BERREN
BB ENMGET AR FH LA
e R EHMX - AR T AU
HEE RIEMYIE - BB MR B E
WEENERERFHNESL LR
RERE - BRERFHEBEMGRT
Rl EEERRHBENERBHEFAX -
BERQEFIA s R A2 A F
HE PR E HA 2R B AT AL B A {2
RERRBEREENITE L EHFR
SHIREH -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Current income taxes and deferred income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

(e) Functional currency
The functional currency of each of the Group's entities
has been determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, that is normally
the one in which each of the Group’s entities primarily
generates and expends cash. The determination requires
the use of judgment.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Directors review the
Group's policies and information for the purposes of assessing
performance. The Group presents its operating segment results
(below), based on the information reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker, and used to make strategic decisions.
This information includes segment revenue, segment capital
expenditures, segment assets, segment non-current assets,
other than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets
and segment liabilities.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The chief operating decision-maker considers the business
mainly from a geographical aspect. In presenting information
on the basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based
on the geographical presence of customers. Segment capital
expenditures, segment assets, segment non-current assets,
other than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets
and segment liabilities are based on the geographical location
of the assets or liabilities.

The chief operating decision maker mainly assesses the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment. Accordingly, the segment performance is restricted to
revenue information.

Revenue of approximately US$51,608,000 (2013:
US$60,034,000) is derived from a single external customer.
This revenue is attributable to the MSG/GA segment located in
Japan.

SEEHE ()
IBEERAREIZNHBEAONEE
BoLBEDHBE2RERE > D aF UM E A
BEFERRE D D EHMERZ L D&
BE - DHFRDEE (ERTARERL
FRASREERN) Ry B ERINEES
BEMEME S -

TERERFETERESINE S BHE
T UGSTEER AL HBERER
U2 R o

W %5 #49551,608,000E T (ZF — =
% 160,034,000 0) BREE — IR
F-REWREKXABAZKE Aafko
\BO

okt

(a) Segment revenue (a) o7&z

2014 2013

—E-mEF —E—=%F

Us$‘000 Us$'000

FET FET

Vietnam 2] 164,619 168,934

The PRC A 33,842 38,433

Japan =] 74,985 79,967

Taiwan ag 14,947 14,908
ASEAN member countries RHKE

(other than Vietnam) (TEeiEwm) 29,787 30,220

Other regions HAbib[m 7,447 9,991

325,627 342,453

2014 2013

—ZE-WmEF —TE-=f

Us$'000 Us$'000

SFEETE FET

MSG/GA WKIE ARk 225,153 239,208

Modified starch/Native starch BRI, KRB 43,220 44,234

Specialty chemicals B Em 22,566 23,199

Fertiliser and feed products HE &7 4 2 21,809 26,736

Others wiil 12,879 9,076

325,627 342,453
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mEBEHRRME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SBEHE)
(b) Capital expenditure (b) EXZH
2014 2013
—E-OF —E-Z=F
uUs$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
Vietnam e 60,565 5,479
The PRC i 817 2,800
61,382 8,279
Capital expenditures are attributed to segments based on BARY TR E E L i 5 A
where the assets are located. EEPERC

ERZHBRAEVE BE LK

Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant

and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets. #H T ERERBEEEE-
(c) Assets (0 E¥E

2014 2013
—E-QmEF —E-Z=F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam 4 318,456 285,697
The PRC F 53,586 58,993
Hong Kong aBE 5,591 7,527
Taiwan = 724 370
Singapore 7N 83 83
Total assets per the balance sheet BEEAERMTBEE 378,440 352,670

CRb

Total assets are attributed to segments based on where 1“8
the assets are located.

P
pa

BEDRBEEMEMMOEE
7

BB

R
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RE KRR
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEHEHE)
() Assets (continued) () ¥EE (#)
Property, plant and equipment are monitored by the ME BERZEREEEREED
management at the operating segment level. The HEEER U TASEEDHNE
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation, MEVEEBE FTERRE  PIEN
impairment of non-current assets, income tax expense A MEEEERARBENHME-
and share of loss from associate for each operating
segment.
Amortisation Share of
and Income tax loss from
depreciation Impairment expense associate
PEfh & A =
BHERFE B FrEBimx g
USs$'000 Us$'000 us$'000 us$’000
FEr FEr FEn TEx
2014 —E_mE
Vietnam B 19,241 - 1,238 97
The PRC o 2,334 - 194 -
21,575 - 1,432 97
2013 —T-=F
Vietnam Hirg 20,472 - 1,424 32
The PRC H 3,067 - 370 -
23,539 - 1,794 32
(d) Non-current assets, other than financial instruments (d) REXREIZIARBDEE (SEMIAE
and deferred income tax assets, by country: RIETEFMEBEERD) :
2014 2013
—E-—MMF —E—=
US$‘000 US$'000
FTER FET
Vietnam 4 152,019 109,745
The PRC s 24,195 25,848
Hong Kong ‘A 3,595 4,901
Taiwan = - -
Singapore 003 = -
Total #Et 179,809 140,494
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWEHE(E)
(e) Liabilities (e) BfE
2014 2013
—ZE—nEF —E-=%F
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam e 92,353 66,728
The PRC + 8,424 11,902
Hong Kong B 5,352 1,976
Taiwan =0 5,167 1,863
Singapore 30 45 44
Total liabilities per the balance sheet EE&BEXRMNEEHAT 111,341 82,513
6 LAND USE RIGHTS - GROUP 6 TiERE-—ExKH
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid AEERTHFRAE s BRELEREN 2
operating lease payments and their net book values are FRNFIE HEREFES TN :
analysed as follows:
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E-=F
US$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Outside Hong Kong, held on EBBAIN BN F+F
Leases of between 10 to 50 years ER+FZHENFE 2,767 2,624
At 1 January m—HA—H 2,624 2,205
Additions NE 219 406
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 A A 4
(Notes 5 and 23) (B EE55%23) (66) (55)
Exchange differences N = (10) 68
At 31 December R+=—A=+—AR 2,767 2,624
In respect of the Group’s land use rights, Xiamen Vedan MAEEZ T EAEMES NP
Foods Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan”), Shandong Vedan Snowflake RiEE 7B RAREFIRARRER AR
and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan"), (TEF®RMA]) LSRR FIE R LEKR
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have each TEERAG([EERAESEES
been granted rights to use the land by the relevant authority BERETRBATFEN T HMEAE 5
for 50 years, which expire in 2042, 2056 and 2060 respectively. R -—TEWN—F —ERNER-_TAE

FEm e
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e M HRRME

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 7 ME - BERSRH -—F5HE
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles  equipment Total
ERIR g BERES RE BAERE &t
UsD'000 UsD'000 UsSD'000 UsD'000 UsD'000 UsD'000
S TEn TERn FEn TER TER
At 1 January 2013 R-B-=Z%-A-H
Cost AR 6,946 104,169 405,672 8,601 31,633 557,021
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE - (58,852) (309,851) (6,741) (29,154) (404,598)
Accumulated impairment ZEAE - (2,628) (9,147) - 22 (11,797)
Net book amount HEHEE 6,946 42,689 86,674 1,860 2,457 140,626
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-Z2-=%
+ZA=t-HLFE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 6,946 42,689 86,674 1,860 2,457 140,626
Additions NE 6,511 264 250 736 87 7,848
Transfer EE (9,915) 5,286 4,420 - 209 -
Disposals (Note 32) & (ME32) - (55) (197) (19) (8) (279)
Depreciation (Notes 5 and 23) & (MaEs5R23) - (5,102) (15,744) (432) (867) (22,145)
Exchange differences ERERE 100 196 350 5 7 658
Closing net book amount FREEDFE 3,642 43,278 75,753 2,150 1,885 126,708
At 31 December 2013 R-EB-=%+=A=1+-H
Cost AR 3,642 109,771 407,356 8,851 31,359 560,979
Accumulated depreciation ZEME - (63,865) (322,456) (6,701) (29,452) (422,474)
Accumulated impairment ZEAE - (2,628) (9,147) - (22 (11,797)
Net book amount HEHEE 3,642 43,278 75,753 2,150 1,885 126,708

Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z-m%

+ZA=t-HLFE

Opening net book amount FOEmFE 3,642 43,278 75,753 2,150 1,885 126,708
Additions RE 60,132 47 258 554 147 61,138
Transfer EE (3,005) 769 2,170 - 66 -
Disposals (Note 32) & (ME32) - (97) (216) (13) - (326)
Depreciation (Notes 5 and 23) & (MzEs5R23) - (4,932) (14,083) (494) (666) (20,175)
Transfer to disposal group BRERENEZHEAT

held for sale (Note 15) (F&E15) (13) (29) - - - (42)
Exchange differences EXZE 3) (375) 295 2 (2) (83)
Closing net book amount EREEFE 60,753 38,661 64,177 2,199 1,430 167,220
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-MF+=A=1+-AH
Cost AR 60,753 110,414 409,469 9,263 30,404 620,303
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE - (69,119) (336,123) (7,064) (28,952) (441,258)
Accumulated impairment ZERE - (2,634) (9,169) - 22 (11,825)
Net book amount HEHEE 60,753 38,661 64,177 2,199 1,430 167,220
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 7
(continued)

Certain items of property, plant and equipment of the Group
are pledged as security for the Group's current and non-current
bank borrowings as follows:

¥k BERRM-FRE(E)

AEEETHE BFEEREBD TEM
ERASBEM A RIFANMRITIEREZ KR
e #HWT

2014 2013
—E2-nmE —F—=
Us$’000 us$'000
SPESom FET
Net book amount of pledged property, EEEME - BE&&E
plant and equipment (Note 36) BREFE (MF7E36) 7,557 15,058

Depreciation expense of US$17,400,000 (2013:
US$18,429,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$367,000
(2013: US$380,000) in selling and distribution expenses
and US$2,408,000 (2013: US$3,336,000) in administrative
expenses, respectively.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$449,000 (2013:nil) on qualifying assets.
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PrER X17,400,000E T (B — =4
18,429,000% 7t ) * 367,000% 0 (=&
— =% :380,0003 jt) }& 2,408,000 T

— T —=%:3,336,000%7T) 2RI
ERA HERDHAIUARITHAS S
Bk -

FR-ANEECFE EREES49,0005E T
ZE-=F E)MEBERARBETELR
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8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY 8 EVEE-FEEREXLT
Group Company
33 N
Software Veyu
Goodwill  and licence  brand name  Trademarks Total  Trademarks
BE EHARER TR R 1 A&t BE
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TERT TET TER TR TR
At 1 January 2013 R=B-=%-A-H
Cost 2% 8,800 1,698 1,142 12,089 23,729 12,089
Accumulated amortisation EHE - (891) (798) (9,470) (11,159) (9,470)
Accumulated impairment ZitAE - - (344) - (344) -
Net book amount HHEE 8,800 807 - 2,619 12,226 2,619
Year ended 31 December 2013 BEZ-Z-=%
+ZA=t-BLFE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 8,800 807 - 2,619 12,226 2,619
Additions HNE - 25 - - 25 -
Amortisation charge (Notes 5 and 23) #3552 (i3T5 1223) - (130 - (1,209) (1,339) (1,209)
Exchange differences EREE 251 - - - 251 -
Closing net book amount FERE@FE 9,051 702 - 1,410 11,163 1,410
At 31 December 2013 R=EB-=%+=A=1+-H
Cost AR 9,051 1,723 - 12,089 22,863 12,089
Accumulated amortisation B 3 - (1,021) - (10,679) (11,700) (10,679)
Net book amount BHFE 9,051 702 - 1,410 11,163 1,410

Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z-IfF

t+ZA=+-ALEE

Opening net book amount FYRAFE 9,051 702 - 1,410 11,163 1,410
Additions RE - 25 - - 25 -
Amortisation charge (Notes 5 and 23)  # #Fi% (Ff7E5%23) - (125) - (1,209) (1,334) (1,209)
Exchange differences EXZE (32) - - - (32) -
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 9,019 602 - 201 9,822 201
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-mF+=A=+-A

Cost KA 9,019 1,748 - 12,089 22,856 12,089
Accumulated amortisation REtEH - (1,146) - (11,888) (13,034) (11,888)
Net book amount REFE 9,019 602 - 201 9,822 201
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. BHEAZIIATHRAS -
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8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’s CGUs according to

8 EEBE-FRERFLF (M)

2R E A,

BEDREAEELES DO EERNEA

operating segment. AL
The PRC Vietnam
H i
MSG MSG
packaging packaging Total
REEHE RIERE CEl
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET TET TET
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-—WHE+=—_RA=+—8H 8,289 730 9,019
At 31 December 2013 R-TB—=F+_H=+—H 8,321 730 9,051

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond
the five years period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below if applicable. The growth does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the MSG
packaging segment in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation
of the goodwill in the PRC MSG packaging segment are as

MBS E 2 TRE BT HER
EEZHRET RSHEEAENER
Btz BFHBBEBEZBBAR
SREBAET BREFHIRERE
ERARTAES 2 g RE#E (WE
B) MERTEEARBRL EUHEE
ZHRBRES BN RATIERE -

AU EHBERERESBEREELE
S/REWT -

follows.
The PRC
H
2014 2013
—E-F —ZT—=
Sales volume HE= 2% - 19% 3% - 19%
Sales price HEE 3% - 12% 3% - 4%
Gross margin EH = 23.6% —34.9% 24.4% - 26.6%
Other operating costs BFEHAMKE AR
per annum (US$'000) (F%1x) 3,402 3,694
Annual capital expenditure BEFEEARRX
per annum (US$'000) (F%m) 279 207
Long term growth rate RHER X 3.5% 3.5%
Pre-tax discount rate TS 15% 15%
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each
CGU within the operating segment.

Growth rate of sales volume is the average annual growth
rate over the five years forecast period. It is based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market
development. Growth rate of sales price is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based
on current industry trends and includes long term inflation
forecasts for each territory.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

Annual capital expenditure is the expected cash costs in the
MSG repackaging segment for adding property, plant and
equipment. This is based on the historical experience of
management in the Vedan group. No incremental revenue or
cost savings are assumed in the value-in-use model as a result
of this expenditure.

Management believes that any reasonably possible changes
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of
goodwill are based would not cause the recoverable amounts to
fall below the carrying amounts.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

8

HEENERESAFRANFHFER
T EREBERBMEEBHMHER
MEREL - HEBNERX ST FER
M FRERE RERBERBITEBE
fH YEA SR RBEKER -

EEENREBEBEXELRAYMEER
ZENBEEREEMNE -FAFTRETIN
AT - WIRRAARE L E D 202 B E R

G o
N

Hth 48 & AR TS BRENR & B ) [ TE K
KU T HEHEENHEERNREY -E
EEERNBRERRBRAZERA I
PEBR LA EH R BEEPAERRE
IR R B AR A BN HE » b st 3 BR A9
SEDAFRABNFIGLERA -

FREEARXTIRBEREDMIEWE -
B B s ) TR BRI S A AN o 1 Th AR
AEEERENBELRSH LEHARN
AR B 3 T AE 58 PR B E AR AL AR RER A SR
RERKIE LN -

EHEERE BEORRE S KER
ITE2BRINEMAEAEEH IS EHRE
A m B ER REE-
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FHELARZRBE BFHRELATZ
HREELERELATRRR-FLF

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS TO 9
SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) RKMBRAAZEKE
2014 2013
—B-pmF =
uUss$‘000 Us$'000
SPESTE FET
Unlisted shares e aiah) 166,030 166,030

THRR—_FE—MFE+-_A=1+—
S 3i)-PNCIE

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2014:

Proportion of

Proportion of ordinary shares

104 vedan International (Holdings) Limited &/ BIBE (28%) AR A =

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
kind of legal entity Principal activities and share capital the Group interest
Name FMAL/ RIS place of operation BRT/HR AE@ERL  FEREREBZ
R UREERRER TEXBREENHE RAFE EERWLA EERILA
Directly held:
EERE:
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") EERRERR US$1 each
RBRARE 100k EREE
1XTHERR
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
ERRAHE EEBRELR US$1 each
100%8KHEE
1ETHERR
Indirectly held:
BERE:
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
g ERMHREER Ordinary shares
61,109,000
ETEBR
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
s ERMBREER Ordinary shares
20,177,000
RUEAR
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FHEBARZRBT KBFHRELATZ
HRREHHRELATRR-FLF

9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS TO 9
SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM

SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued) (#8)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) RKMBATRAZEKRE (&)

Proportion of

Proportion of
ordinary shares

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and issued/paid up heldby  non-controlling
kind of legal entity Principal activities and share capital the Group interest
Name EMAL/ LB place of operation BRT/HR AL FEREREEZ
ZR UREEERER TEEBREEHE RAGE EERWLA EERLA
Veedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 131,970,000 99.9% 0.1%
Corporation Limited HE based food additives and biochemical Ordinary shares of (Note 37)
WA (BB RHERAR products and cassava starch-based US$1 each (F3$37)
industrial products including MSG, 131,970,000 8 R EE
GA, modified starch, glucose syrup, IETHERER
soda and acid in Vietnam and for
export
EHBREREERRERMAME
EERRAERNIZER
BERE ARE SR
BERR RITRERTHELD
Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Packaging and sales of MSG in Vietnam 1,838,282 Ordinary shares 100% -
(Note 15) (Hi3£15) it EHEREREERE of US$1 each
1,838, 282k B R EE
1ETEERR
Shandong Vedan Snowflake PRC, limited liability Manufacture and sale of MSG in the PRC  US$17,200,000 70% 30%
Enterprise Co., Ltd company EREEERBERRE Registered capital
WRFKASEEEERAR PE AREALH 17,200,000 AR
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG in the PRC US$9,800,000 100% -
Co. Ltd. company ERERERHERR Registered capital
LERACXERAR hE BREARA 9,800,000k T A A
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG in the PRC US$20,270,000 100% -
EMRARGERAA company ErEARREERE Registered capital
PE BREMRA 20,270,000% TLiE A
Xiamen Darong Import & PRC, limited liability Trading of cassava starch-based US$254,000 100% -
Export Trade Co., Ltd. company industrial products in the PRC Registered capital
ERAREHDESERAA REEREELA EHEEEAZENIXER 254,000% T AR
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9 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS TO 9
SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued)

(b) Loans to subsidiaries and amounts due from

subsidiaries

(i) As at 31 December 2014, the non-current loans to
subsidiaries of US$2,218,000 and US$5,000,000
are unsecured, carried an interest at three-month
SIBOR plus 1% and six-month LIBOR plus 2.8% per
annum, denominated in US$ and repayable on 31
July 2016 and 15 April 2019 respectively. (2013:
US$2,218,000, unsecured, carried an interest at
three-month SIBOR plus 1%, denominated in US$
and repayable on 31 July 2016).

(i) As at 31 December 2014, the current loan to
subsidiaries is nil. (2013: US$54,000 is unsecured,
carried an interest at three-month SIBOR plus
3.25% per annum, denominated in US$ and
repayable on 31 December 2014).

(iii)  Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable on
demand.
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FHELARZRBE BFHRELATZ
HREELERELATRRR-FLF

(%)

(b) HTHBLARAZERREWRNEL
AR

(i)

(iii)

RZE—OFF+A=+—
B 4 FHEARZ2,218,000
2 7T %5,000,0003= 7T 3k B £
ERAMER R =1E AN
WARTTR 72 E R mH
RITRI S B N2.8E 2 F 7
KE B LAETEE X H 7
ARZZE—AR"FLtA=1+—
ARZE—NFUA+HAE
B(ZET—=%:2,218,000%
TC AR % =8 A E N
WIRITRIZEREIMETE - MU
EEE WERZZ—RF
+tA=+—HEE)-

RZE—W&E+=—A=+—
H 4 THBRARZEBHER
BT (ZF— =4 :54,000
X AERB-Z=-EAHN
I IRITRENRBM325E 2
FRERFFBUETHE I
ARZE—NF+ZA=+—
AEE) -

& Mo B /B8 & B kIR A R
B CUETFE LEARE
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10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 10 HN—HBEBEAFZKRE -BF—HB
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE AND AMOUNT DUE ENFICEHERRER—FHBEELN
FROM AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND COMPANY FICRE-FEEREFLT
(a) Investment in an associate (a) R—BEHEATZRE

Company
AT
2014 2013
—EB-mF —=—=
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FE MR (A A) 3,788 3,788
Movement on the investment in an associate is as follows: R—EBERARZREZEHIT
Group Company
rEE b NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-mE —T-=F ZB-AOF "—T-=F
Uss$'000 US$'000 USs$'000 US$'000
FEr FET TEx FTEr
At 1 January Hn—A—H 3,490 3,042 3,788 3,308
Injection of share capital £ A& - 480 - 480
Share of post-tax loss of &1l — B & A 7
an associate RELEER (97) (32) - -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 3,393 3,490 3,788 3,788
Nature of investment in an associate as at 31 December RZZE-—OFR_ZE—Z=ZF+_H
2014 and 2013: =+—R R-HEBEARZREE
BT
Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
=L HMA AR BERITREFES BEEZE% HERE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 4,100,000 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited eSS US$1 each B&HE
EMBERERAR DA 4,100,000
FREEIETZRNG
The associate is principally engaged in real estate ZBMEANTETERNUEREFME
development in Vietnam. As of 31 December 2014, the ER-RN_F—MOEF+_A=+—
associate has not commenced any projects. H &t R e AR ERIER -

Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company
and there is no quoted market price available for its
shares.

EREBRERER AT ABLALDF
BEBRO T ETSRE-
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10

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 10
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE AND AMOUNT DUE

FROM AN ASSOCIATE - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Investment in an associate (continued)

There is capital commitment amounting to US$2,632,000
(2013: US$2,632,000) in relation to the Group's
investment in the associate.

R—HEBELRZRE BT —MB
BEAFZEMRREER—MBEEL
FIZRA-FRERFLF ()

(a) R-REBELEARAZRE (HF)
REEBERZBERRAZRES
2,632,000 L (=T —=4%:
2,632,000% 7T ) 7 & AREHE o

Reconciliation of summarised financial information BEERNBEHE
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
us$'000 us$'000
FEx FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—B—BZEEZFHE 11,634 10,139
Loss for the year FRNEIE (325) (105)
Injection of share capital AR - 1,600
Net assets as at 31 December R+=-—A=+—-8B2
EEFE 11,309 11,634
Interest in an associate (30%) N—EEE AR 2R
(30%) 3,393 3,490

Short-term loan to an associate
The short-term loan to an associate is unsecured, bears
interest at 3.5% per annum, denominated in US$ and is
repayable on 16 September 2014.

Amount due from an associate

As at 31 December 2014, the amount due from an
associate is US$123,000, which is unsecured, interest
free, denominated in US$ and is repayable on demand
(2013: nil).
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(b) %?" EHEARZEHER
F-HBERRAZEHERAE
Tfiﬁ BEREIS%EF L AE
ToRHE WER=ZZ—NF LA+~
A e

(0 EW—BHEATRZINE
R-ZE—mE+—_A=+—H" EK
— @& A B 2 K18 123,000E T A&
M 2B AETFHE LAR
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 11 BREJESZEMIA-FTEERE
GROUP AND COMPANY NF]
2014 2013
—E-—mF —EF—=
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx FExT
Group rEH
Loans and receivables B E R A
— Long-term loan and receivables (Note 13) — R HIE 7 & & W 5118
(MH5E13) 165 117
— Trade receivables (Note 13) —JEWE SRR
(MH5E13) 25,981 30,741
— Amount due from non-controlling —JEW — R B A A
interest of a subsidiary FEPE MR 2 FRIA 933 1,445
— Amount due from a related party — Bl —BEREALZ
(Note 35(d)) 8 (MTEE35(d)) 1,146 -
— Amount due from an associate — B —FEBE AR
(Notes 10(c) and 35(d)) FRIE (M EE10(c) &
35(d)) 123 -
— Short-term loan to an associate - i ] AN P
(Notes 10(b) and 35(d)) HHAE =
(Ht3E10(b) K35(d)) - 96
— Other receivables — current portion — H i FE YR IE
— BN ER &R 10 649 652
— Short-term bank deposits (Note 14(a)) — R HRITIER
(KIzE14()) 3,463 3,013
— Restricted cash (Note 14(b)) —ZBHRE
(KI=E14(b)) 4,249 4,264
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14(a)) -ReERkReEED
(KIzE14(@a)) 37,491 39,496
Assets as per balance sheet BEBBERATRZEE 74,200 79,824
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R KA EZ
MBaE
— Trade payables (Note 18) —ENE SRR
(MizE18) 14,546 14,590
- Other payables and accruals — B JRE < RRIE &
EEE R 11,298 5,510
— Amount due to a related party —EN—BEREALZ
(Note 35(d)) A8 (FIEE35(d)) - 313
— Bank borrowings (Note 19) —R1TEE (MFE19) 71,553 45,159
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEBBERAMTRZAE 97,397 65,572
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mEBEHRRME
11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 11 RENESZEMIA-FTEERSE
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) NFE (18)
2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
us$’000 us$'000
FEx FZET
Company NN
Loans and receivables B 3% el shoE
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — R HT /B A Rz k1B
(Note 9(b)) (FF#E9(b) ) 38,738 41,640
- Loans to subsidiaries (Note 9(b)) —HTHBRAIZER
(Ft3E9(b)) 7.218 2,272
— Amount due from an associate — B — R & QR 2 RUIA
(Notes 10(c) and 35(d)) (B FE10(c) 5235(d) ) 123 -
— Short-term loan to an associate —HBRT—HEBEARZ
(Notes 10(b) and 35(d)) REE (FFE10(b)
K235(d) ) - 96
— Other receivables — H b JE W FRIR 166 63
— Short-term bank deposits (Note 14(a)) — 5GBSR 1T A (M sE14(a)) 2,059 2,066
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14(a)) - BEakReEFEEYD
(F3E14(@a)) 909 1,076
Assets as per balance sheet BEABRATCEE 49,213 47,213
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEKATECVBEE
— Other payables and accruals —HibERRIBE R EE R 389 350
— Amount due to a related party —EN—BBEBEEATZ
(Note 35(d)) A (M5E35(d)) - 313
— Bank borrowings (Note 19) —RITEE (M5E19) 9,276 2,502
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEBBERAMTRZAE 9,665 3,165
12 INVENTORIES - GROUP 12 HFE-*T5£H
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
us$‘000 us$'000
FEx FET
Consumables SHFE M@ 4,551 4,726
Raw materials R AR 38,662 46,012
Work in progress @ 9,088 26,594
Finished goods B 52,474 37,870
104,775 115,202

The cost of inventories of US$237,639,000 (2013:
US$255,791,000) has been charged in cost of sales.

110 vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk BIR (3253) BRA T

FEMA R237,639,000E T (—F—=
£ :255,791,000% 7T ) B AT ASHE KA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND 13 BRRHIERRAMBUBRE -XK

COMPANY BRELT
Group Company
rEH KAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T=F ZTB-IF ~—T—=F
Us$’000 Us$'000 us$’000 US$'000
FE5x FET FET FET
Trade receivables from EWE=FEHER
third parties 27,651 32,477 - -
Less: provision for o EWE SRR
impairment of A
trade receivables (1,670) (1,736) - -
Trade receivables - net BREZER-FH 25,981 30,741 = -
Prepayments TE T FRIB 14,337 13,659 1,536 1,825
Other receivables HAth & W k1A 814 769 166 63
41,132 45,169 1,702 1,888
Less: non-current portion of & : E fth fE Yg 7118 ~
other receivables JEBNHAEL 1D (165) (117) = -
Current portion B # &6 17 40,967 45,052 1,702 1,888
As at 31 December 2014, all non-current receivables are due RZE—MF+ZA=+—H8 2
within five years from the end of the year (2013: same). HEWZIERFEB BT AFREES (=
T—=F:f8R) -
The fair values of trade and other receivables are as follows: FENE 5 R 5k 2 H Ath FEUGRIB 2 A B0
T
Group Company
rEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NFE —T-=F Z—ZEB-NE —T—=F
Us$’000 Us$'000 us$’000 US$'000
FE5T FET FET FET
Trade receivables — net EUWE SER—F5 25,981 30,741 = -
Other receivables H b fE U SR IR 856 795 166 63
26,837 31,536 166 63
The fair values of other receivables are based on cash flows Bl ZFIE AFAEDRBNRE(ZZ
discounted using the borrowing rate of 12% (2013: 12%). This —=ZF:NRBEIZEEFNERTBRZ2BER
discount rate reflects the LIBOR plus appropriate credit rating ERAEEHE ZWRERMEHIRITH
of the Group. The fair values are within level 2 of the fair value ERERAEE 2 RBEATR -ZER
hierarchy. FEBRAATEER 2E -
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND 13 BRRHIERRAMBUBRE -XK

COMPANY (continued) BERFLAF(E)
The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on EWESERZEEHBREDNRE
delivery to 60 days and the ageing of the trade receivables R MEREZREFRERRHZERERS
based on invoice date is as follows: N
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
US$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
0 - 30 days 0£30K 20,611 21,004
31 - 90 days 31290k 3,469 7,128
91 - 180 days 91£180Kk 1,830 1,660
181 — 365 days 181%365K 52 786
Over 365 days 365K A 1,689 1,899
27,651 32,477
As of 31 December 2014, trade receivables of US$23,229,000 R_ZE—NF+=-A=+—H"
(2013: US$26,780,000) were fully performing. 23,229,000F T ( ZF—=4 : 26,780,000

X)) EREE SRR EBER S -

As of 31 December 2014, trade receivables of US$2,752,000 R-ZZE—NF+=-A=+—H" 2,752,000
(2013: US$3,961,000) were past due but not considered EL(ZET—=4:3,961,000F7T) 2 &
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers WESEREHNHERRHARRE - BH
for whom there is no significant financial difficulty and based RESHETUESEAVRRE 2 BLREP
on past experience, it is considered that the overdue amounts A - BRBRTLER BHFRIBHESER
can be recovered. The ageing of those past due but not A B - 5% 5 B B HAE 30 ARORUE 2 FE IR
impaired receivables is as follows: BZEERITWOT:
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-F —E—=
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Overdue by 0 HA
0 - 90 days 0£290K 2,452 2,708
91 - 180 days 91£180K 244 1,202
Over 180 days 180K £ 56 51
2,752 3,961
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND 13 BRRHIERRAMBUBRE -XK

COMPANY (continued) BERFELAF(E)

As of 31 December 2014, trade receivables of US$1,670,000 R-ZZE—WE+=-_A=+—H"1,670,000
(2013: US$1,736,000) were considered impaired. The amount En(=ZZF—=%:1,736,000%7T) 2 [E
of the provision made was US$1,670,000 as of 31 December WEBESERERABERE- R —NO
2014 (2013: US$1,736,000). The ageing of these receivables is F+-_A=+—BHEENEESRAE
as follows: 1,670,000% 7T (=& — =4 :1,736,000

ETT) R FRUGRIANRE ST :

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=fF
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Overdue by 360 5
0 - 90 days 0Z90% - -
91 - 180 days 91E180K - -
181 — 365 days 181E365K - 44
Over 365 days 365K 1,670 1,692
1,670 1,736
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are JEWE 5 R 30 I B Ath U SR TE 2 BRTELE 4R
denominated in the following currencies: THEEEHE -
Group Company
rEH AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NFE —T—=F Z—ZEB-NFE —T—=F
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
F =t FET FETT FET
Vietnam Dong B E 27,565 21,375 = -
UsS dollar ETT 6,976 17,888 1,536 1,799
New Taiwan dollar e 199 88 166 89
Renminbi AR 6,392 5,818 - -
41,132 45,169 1,702 1,888
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13

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - GROUP AND
COMPANY (continued)

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

PR Mt 52 5 AR 3 R 3Lt My 3 0 — &5 %
MR&STE ()

REE BN S ESREREED R
-

Group
rEH
2014 2013
—B-pmF =
Us$’000 Us$'000
SPEST FET
At 1 January m—A—H 1,736 1,609
Provision for receivables impairment JE MR R TR LB R
(Note 23) (M5E23) - 160
Receivables written off during the year A A U BN B 2
as uncollectible JRE U BR 3R (45) -
Unused amounts reversed (Note 23) BREOAAEEE (ME23) (21) (33)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—A~ 1,670 1,736

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables
have been included in administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement (Note 23). Amounts charged to
the allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The group does not hold any collateral as security.
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SHORT-TERM

BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED CASH -

GROUP AND COMPANY

(@) Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank

deposits

The remittance of these funds out of the PRC and
Vietnam is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by
the PRC and Vietnamese governments.

14 BeRBAGFRY EHBTERR

ERHFRS-FKERFELF

(a)

RERBREEEMRERRTER

ZEESELPENBEEAE TS
B % L o BUAT ) SN )46 B

Group Company
rEH KAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mFE —F— —E-mFE —T—=
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 US$'000
FERT FET TEx FET
Short-term bank REE B ABB
deposits with original =ERAZREHR
maturity over three TR
months 3,463 3,013 2,059 2,066
Cash at bank and on RITRFHERS
hand 37,491 39,496 909 1,076
40,954 42,509 2,968 3,142
The Group's and the Company’s cash and cash REBRARBIZEERA2SE
equivalents and short-term bank deposits are YR AT R A T E M EHE
denominated in the following currencies:
Group Company
rEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-NE —T-=F ZEBE-QNFE —T—=F
Us$‘000 Us$’000 uss$’000 Us$'000
FE FET FTEx FET
Vietnam Dong BEE 12,077 9,197 = -
UsS dollar ETT 19,155 20,458 473 736
Renminbi AR 9,299 12,531 2,072 2,083
Hong Kong dollar 7B TT 44 64 44 64
New Taiwan dollar =t 375 259 375 259
Others HAb 4 - 4 -
40,954 42,509 2,968 3,142
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SHORT-TERM
BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED CASH -
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

(@) Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank

14 BeRBGFRY EHBTERR
ERHFAS-FRERELQF ()

(a) RERRESEBYREHRITERN

deposits (continued) (&)
The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the RBERAR - NEE 2 BERERER
end of the reporting period were as follows. AT e
Group Company
rEH b NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —_T-=F ZB-—NF —T—=F
Short-term bank REEE ARG
deposits with original ={EAzZREH
maturity over three RITFE K
months 4.3% 5.7% 3.6% 3.6%

(b) Restricted cash
As at 31 December 2014, US$4,249,000 (2013:
US$4,264,000) are restricted deposits denominated in
Renminbi held at bank as reserve for serving of a bank
borrowing (Note 36).

15 DISPOSAL GROUP HELD-FOR-SALE

The assets and liabilities related to Orsan Vietnam Co., Ltd, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, have been presented
as disposal group held for sale following the approval of the
Group’s management on 31 December 2014 to sell Orsan
Vietnam Co., Ltd in Vietnam to a third party. The transaction
has been completed on 9 March 2015.

(@) Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale

(b) ZRHEBES
RZE—NFE+=ZA=+—8"
4,249,000 (=& — =
4,264,000 7T ) B RAEREERT
BEZHEEMTFHRRRITZARE
FHEZ R G FR (HiE36)

15 BHEHEZHEAR
EAEBEREER_T—WNF+=A
=+— Bk - # 8 Orsan Vietnam Co.,
Ld (AEBz2EHBRAR)EET—%
8 =751 > HOrsan Vietnam Co., Ltd+8
CEERABEHEARBELREZLER
FZ2H -ZRXHGHR_E—RAF=ANARE
Bk o

() PEABFHEZHEARNZEE

2014 2013
—Z-mF —E-=F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Property, plant and equipment mE--BE &

(Note 7) it (PI5E7) 42 -
Cash and cash equivalent RekFeEEY 313 -
Trade and other receivables FEWE R K&

i jE YR IB 1,571 -
1,926 -
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15 DISPOSAL GROUP HELD-FOR-SALE (continued) 15

(b) Cumulative income or expense recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to disposal group
classified as held for sale

BFFEEE2HEAR (#])
(b) REMZERATEIEIERF

fEHE 2 HEARHEZEsT A
E4::ES
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
Us$’000 Us$'000
SFESn FET

Foreign exchange translation M 5 B
adjustments

Total s - -
16 SHARE CAPITAL - GROUP AND COMPANY 16 BAEA-FXEBERAEARQT
Authorised ordinary shares
EEEBER
Par value Number
uss$ of shares Us$’000
HE
ESp R7EE FEx
At 31 December 2014 and R ZZE—M4F
31 December 2013 +Z—A=+—H K
—E-=F+ZA=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

ERTRAREER
Par value Number of
us$ shares Us$’000
HE
ESp BB EE FEn
At 31 December 2014 and R -Z—[04
31 December 2013 TZA=+—BRK
—E—=F+-A=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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17 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 17 FHi-FKERFLF
(a) Group (a) *=£HE
Merger
Share Other reserve Retained
Premium Reserve (Note) earnings Total
ARG
ROEE Hit 5B (PEE) REBF wE
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FET TEL TEL TEL FET
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%—-H—H 47,358 15,438 79,994 114,392 257,182
Comprehensive income  ZEWA
Profit for the year AFEERH - - - 1,488 1,488
Other comprehensive ~ HfttZEKA
income
Currency translation EBHERE
differences - 1,748 - - 1,748

Total comprehensive 2EBAEE

income - 1,748 - 1,488 3,236
Total transaction HBBEBAZHBERSE

with owners
Dividends paid relating ~ —F-ZFR-E-=F

t0 2012 and 2013 RHRBZEMNES

interim period - - - (3,741) (3,741)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+ZA=+—H 47,358 17,186 79,994 112,139 256,677
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17 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

(a)

Group (continued)

Share
Premium

I 4 B
US$'000
TER

At 1 January 2014 RZZ-NE-A—-H
Comprehensive income  ZEWA
Loss for the year rEEBR
Other comprehensive ~ HE2ERA
income
Currency translation EHERE
differences
Total comprehensive 2HRALE
income
Total transactions HEBAZARSE

with owners
Changes in ownership
interests in a subsidiary
without change of
control (Note 37)

TREHEHNEZHZ HELF
EEANEREY (H:37)

At 31 December 2014 R-Z2-mF+-A=1+—8

Note:

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange

therefor.

17 EM-FREREZLF (K)
(a) #A%HE (#)

Merger
Other reserve Retained
Reserve (Note) earnings Total
RbtREE
HitifE (HzE) REER fk
Uss$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TR TER R Fxn

GEE

REBNEHREBERERN _ZT=_F
T A+ RNBERANEBSEAEMKE
B B8 1 7] 69 AR AN T B R IR 17 i (B B A A
AR EI TR MEI T2 RAEENEE
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17 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) 17

(b) Company (b) ZE2TH
Share Exchange Retained
premium reserve Earnings Total
i E R REEF we
USs$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEn FEn FEn TEx
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—HA—H 194,098 88 18,783 212,969
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year REEEE - - (8,177) (8,177)
Other comprehensive  Hth2EEE
loss
Currency translation ]
difference - (14) - (14)
Total comprehensive ZEBA (BE)BE
income/(loss) - (14) (8,177) (8,191)
Total transaction with EEBAZBXZHE
owners
Dividends paid relating —ZT— -k _-_T—=%
t0 2012 and 2013 TEBBZE MRS
interim period - - (3,741) (3,741)
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=%F
+-A=+—H 194,098 74 6,865 201,037
At 1 January 2014 NW_T—MNF—A—H 194,098 74 6,865 201,037
Comprehensive loss 2HEER
Loss for the year KEE - - (5,901) (5,901)
Other comprehensive  HftZ2HEEE
loss
Currency translation BE 5 =
difference - (113) - (113)
Total comprehensive ~ ZEWA / (EE)#5E
income/(loss) - (113) (5,901) (6,014)
At 31 December 2014 ~ RZ-Z—M4F
+-A=+-—H 194,098 (39) 964 195,023

- aKERFLFE ()

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Cayman Companies Law
(2003 Revision) and the Articles of Association of the
Company, the share premium of the Company is available
for distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency
test on the Company and the provision of the Articles of
Association of the Company.

RERAEHERARE(ZTT=F
ERTAR ) 341G R AR BB E 24T
A > A2~ & H) B 8 (B A 9 R T
R HEARARABBEGBRENDAHEA
MeaRRREBERMANEE -
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18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - GROUP AND 18 BERRHIERRAMEGRER-XK

COMPANY BERELF
Group Company
rEH AN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T=F ZTB-IF ~—T—=F
Us$’000 Us$'000 US$°000 Us$'000
FTER FET FTET FET
Trade payables FETE SR 14,546 14,590 = -
Accruals EETE M 5,065 5,786 95 113
Payable of construction FERT R EERK AN FRIA
costs 10,321 4,608 - -
Other payables E i fE T 5RIB 2,945 4,581 1,146 1,073
32,877 29,565 1,241 1,186

At 31 December 2014, the ageing of trade payables based on

invoice date is as follows:

RZZE—NFE+_A=+—H ENES
BRRRBERAHRZREDTAT

2014 2013

—ZE—lmE —T—=F

US$‘000 Us$'000

FEx FET

0 - 30 days 0Z30K 13,738 13,354
31 - 90 days 31290k 685 1,191
91 - 180 days 912180k 59 -
181 — 365 days 1812365k 27 17
Over 365 days 365K A & 37 28
14,546 14,590

AEBRARRZENEZRRAREME
NHORz REER T 5 E8EHE:

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
trade and other payables are denominated in the following
currencies:

Group Company
rEH ¥ YN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —ET—= —E-NmE —T—=

US$°'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FERT FET TEx FET
Vietnam Dong MR A 18,246 13,978 = -
US Dollar ETT 10,278 9,546 348 315
New Taiwan Dollar ek 893 871 893 871
Renminbi AR 3,460 5,170 - -
32,877 29,565 1,241 1,186
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19 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 19 HRITEE-FRKERFLTF

Group Company
AEE ¥ NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —T—= —E-mE —_ZT—=
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET FEx FET
Non-current JE BN AR
Bank borrowings RITHEE
- secured —BH#A
(Notes 34 and 36) (F5E3436) 27,696 1,223 - -
— unsecured — KA 5,000 851 = -
32,696 2,074 - -
Current BOHA
Bank borrowings wITEE
- secured — 7
(Notes 34 and 36) (MI7E34536) 28,381 34,843 - -
— unsecured — 44K 10,476 8,242 9,276 2,502
38,857 43,085 9,276 2,502
Total bank borrowings RITEERE 71,553 45,159 9,276 2,502

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s and the Company’s bank
borrowings were repayable as follows:

KoZ-mE+=A=+-0 AEER
DR 2RI EAN AT R

Group Company
rEH ¥V

2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —T-=F ZE-0F —T-—=F
US$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET FEx FET
Within 1 year —F N 38,857 43,085 9,276 2,502
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMF 8,633 1,223 - -
Between 2 and 5 years MEERSF 20,587 - - -
Over 5 years AFENUE 3,476 851 - -
71,553 45,159 9,276 2,502
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19

BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY
(continued)

19 #R7

EBEE-ZKERFLF (&)

Group Company
KEE AN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE =% ZEB-NFE —_T—=F
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 US$'000
FTER FET FTEx TET
Wholly repayable BARAFANEZEEE
within 5 years 68,077 44,308 9,276 2,502
Wholly repayable BARAFEZEEER
after 5 years 3,476 851 - -
71,553 45,159 9,276 2,502

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate

REE IR AKE B EHE S & F X

%

changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the FRENEMIEHBAOT
reporting period are as follows:
Group Company
rEE KRAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NE —ET—=-F —ZE—-NE —T—=4#
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 US$'000
FERT FET TEx FET
Within 6 months 618 A K 58,453 38,715 9,276 2,502
Between 7 and 12 months 72 121& A 4,000 5,222 = -
Between 1 and 5 years 1254 9,100 1,222 — -
71,553 45,159 9,276 2,502
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19 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 19 HRITEE-FRKERFLF (H)

(continued)
INBEECEREELAFENAT !

The carrying amounts and fair values of the non-current
borrowings are as follows:

Group Company
rEE b NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-—NFE —ZT—= —E-mOFE —T—=

USs$’000 Us$'000 US$’000 Us$'000
FEx F=T FTERT FET
Carrying amount R E 32,696 2,074 - -
Fair value NEE 32,701 2,072 - -

HRAITREETK HEE A AFER
HIREEMAR - A FETIUEEF K2 2
(ZE—=F ! 35E)SHMLLERFB
BeEREE UYERAFEBRA ZF 24 -

The fair values of current borrowings equal their carrying
amounts, as the impact of discounting is not significant. The
fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate
based on the borrowing rate of 2.2% (2013: 3.5%) and are
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group’s and the RBEHAR AEERARFEEZER
Company's borrowings at the end of the reporting period were FRMEPT
as follows:

Group Company

rEH b NS

2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-OFE —T-=F ZEB-—NmFE —T—=

Us Dollar xT 1.9% 2.1% 2.3% 3.1%
New Taiwan Dollar ek 2.2% 2.3% 2.2% 2.3%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s

AEBEARNRBEZREERATERE

borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: FHE
Group Company
rEH ¥ YN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T—= =E-EmE —T—=
US$’000 Us$'000 US$°000 Us$'000
FTER FET TER FET
US Dollar xT 69,977 44,157 7,700 1,500
New Taiwan dollar A 1,576 1,002 1,576 1,002
71,553 45,159 9,276 2,502
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19 BANK BORROWINGS - GROUP AND COMPANY 19
(continued)

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

BTER-FREARFTLF (W)

AEBEUTAREREERE -

2014 2013
—E-MmEF —F—=
Us$’000 US$'000
FXE7T FET
Floating rate: S
— Expiring within one year — R —F R H 69,543 60,552
— Expiring beyond one year —R—F1&EIH = -
Fixed rate: EE
— Expiring within one year —R—F R H 29,849 32,256
— Expiring beyond one year —R—F1&E|H 1,900 7,333
101,292 100,141

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP 20

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the principal tax
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as

BREMBR-F%ME
AT FT19 B4 T IR 8 B 0 DA AN 55 )22 4
EEREENEERE R T2
o

EXFSREERABZOMMT

follows:
2014 2013
—EB-pmEF —E-=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Deferred income tax assets: BEMBHEE:
— Deferred income tax assets to be — 151218 A& Uk e 2
recovered after more than 12 months BEMBHEE - -
Deferred income tax liabilities: BB AE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — B 12ME Al E 2
recovered after more than 12 months RIEFSHAE 4,772 5,357
Deferred income tax liabilities, net REMSHRaEFHE 4,772 5,357
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as RIEFEHREREH|OT
follows:
2014 2013
—E-MmEF —F—=
us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January Rn—A—H 5,357 6,122
Income statement credit (Note 25) AR (KfsE25) (585) (765)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H” 4,772 5,357
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20

DEFERRED INCOME TAX - GROUP (continued) 20 REMRT{SR-FKE (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities REFBRTEMSBHEEREE (R RK
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting AR REEENEHAT) NEB M
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFESHEE Accelerated tax depreciation
MEHRBRE
2014 2013
—E-mF —T=
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 6,144 7,142
Credited to income statement AW E K (569) (998)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 5,575 6,144
Deferred income tax assets BEERSHEE Other temporary differences
HitErs =48
2014 2013
—E-nEF —E-Z=F
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January n—RA—H (787) (1,020)
(Credited)/charged to income statement (5t A) 0k B s & (16) 233
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H (803) (787)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$828,000 (2013: US$858,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
Us$11,782,000 (2013: US$10,949,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses will expire in
one to five years.
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21 REVENUE 21 k&
The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based AEBRERESEEHERQAME - 4
food additives, biochemical products and cassava starch- tEREMRZBRMD IEER BIEEH
based industrial products including modified starch, glucose B BEER KRB MIT ERBREK
syrup, MSG, soda, acid and beverages. Revenues recognised BReHE_T—NWEER_T—=ZF+=
for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 were AR=E=+—BLEEE®RZR=D A
US$325,627,000 and US$342,453,000 respectively. 325,627,0003 Jt % 342,453,000F T °
22 OTHER GAINS - NET 22 Hftwh— B8
2014 2013
—E-OF —E-Z=F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Net exchange loss M H B8 F 5 (184) (77)
Loss on disposals of property, HEME BEK
plant and equipment B KA (314) (269)
Sales of scrap materials EERHEE 813 887
Others HAh 555 615
870 1,156
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23

24

25

EXPENSES BY NATURE 23 BMEESBEZHAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution HEXRK HERDHAI RITHAZE
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BREZAZSWOAT :
2014 2013
—E—NF —T—=F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Changes in inventories and consumables FERERHEERE
used 237,639 255,791
Amortisation of intangible assets mIvEEEH 1,334 1,339
Amortisation of land use rights 3 {50 A e 8 66 55
Auditor’s remuneration % ER0 B & 340 340
Depreciation on property, plant and W BEMERBEINE
equipment 20,175 22,145
Operating leases expenses BRAMEE T K
in respect of leasehold land GiER Ol 3 325 161
Employee benefit expenses EE®AFAXZ 29,135 29,986
(Reversal)/provision for impairment of EUE 5 BRFORE
trade receivables (BE) B (21) 127
Other expenses H & 38,636 32,336
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution %%/ﬁ%zﬁ ) iﬁ%@%%%%ﬁi
expenses and administrative expenses RATIRG X 4 %8 327,629 342,280
FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME - NET 24 M (ZH) WA-B8
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E-=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Finance income B BUR A 643 981
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEENBFAX (1,359) (742)
Less: amounts capitalised B ABEEANEIEA
on qualifying assets 449 -
Finance costs B Sz (910) (742)
Finance (costs)/income — net M () WA~ 5 (267) 239

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing

in the countries in which the Group operates.
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25

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

25

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income

statement represents:

FRrisBA (#§)

REFAKRBER AN 2 MEHRERE:

2014 2013

—ZT-IF —E—=F

Uss$‘000 Us$'000

EETT FET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") EMEH 2,054 3,036
Over-provision of income tax WITFEMSHBREE

in previous years (37) (477)

Total current tax BIERFSIE 42 %8 2,017 2,559

Deferred income tax RIS (585) (765)

1,432 1,794

The income tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major

AEBARFAEBA (BE), 5 f e
SREMERAAREEZEME A RME
WA EAREMEEOERRATR

subsidiary of the Group, as follows: E gl aaN
2014 2013
—EB-mF —E-=F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FXE7T FET
(Loss)/profit before tax BRECRT (B1B) % F (1,496) 2,522
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 15% I ANMHFE K15%:1H 2
(2013: 15%) ME(ZZE—=
15% ) (224) 378
Tax effects of different tax rates TEBEZR G E (88) (97)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes Ik b2 1,479 1,191
Income not subject to tax BAERB A (51) (36)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax AR ARG &S
losses (23) -
Over-provision in prior years ERTFEHBBEREE (37) (477)
Tax losses arising for which no deferred FTEE HE 18 30 SR T SRR I
income tax asset was recognised FRiSmEEZ R ER 376 835
Tax charge HMIEXH 1,432 1,794

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

EEASRIZYE RN EERENE
BBt AT S r0 B 78 SR S A AT HI AR M M ST

HEBFHARE-
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25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 25 FRB MMz (&)
(i) Vietnam (i) M
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in ZHI B A RIMIREFFAIFE AT &
Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax rate offered SETUENEEMNBRCEMS
by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the MERZ15% B BT X R BUT A
subsidiary’s investment license. ETHEIHE-
(i) The PRC (i) #E
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the $EIE¢‘IE’J¥WE’J A2
PRC is 25%. TR %25% °
(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong (i) FgE EB
No Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as AR AR S B R A FE I & 5T I
the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or N BRI ESHETERTIAT
derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year. B 30 4 1 3T N BB FIB R
iR -
(iv) Taiwan (iv) &%
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in REBERENEBONBERBERR
Taiwan is 17%. BRERIT% °
26 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 26 XLFHAAEMESIR
COMPANY
The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with RARE B REEIER AR FHEE AL
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of 1551 A5,901,000 T (ZE—=F 5
US$5,901,000 (2013: loss of US$8,177,000). 188,177,000% 7)) °
27 DIVIDENDS 27 BB
There was no dividend paid in 2014 (2013: US$3,741,000 —MEHERERE(ZT—=
(0.246 US cents per ordinary share)). The Board has resolved F :3,741,000% 7T (7 &% I @ ARO. 246%
not to recommend for shareholders’ approval at its forthcoming i)) FEFGEABRITERREEES
annual general meeting the payment of a final dividend for the —MmFE+ZA=+—H tﬁfgﬂ’\ﬂi,ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: same). ZE-=F 8RR AR R EE R
AFERE EEHt-
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E-=F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
2014 interim dividend, nil (2013 interim: —UERERE -
0.101 US cents) per ordinary share m(ZE—=FFhH:
0.101%Ml) B E B - 1,536

The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid and proposed
during 2014 and 2013 have been disclosed in the consolidated
income statement in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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28 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 28 WA (BR) 27

(a)

(b)

Basic (a)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing

the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company by

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

=B

BRER (BR) BMNEADAE
BARG (BR)EHNBUAFRE
BT E AR NETFHEAE-

2014 2013
—E-IF —E-=F
Us$’000 Us$'000
F Xt FET
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners KRRBHER AR
of the Company (B8, aF (2,434) 1,488
Weighted average number of ordinary 2 %77 & i A% i F 15 &
shares in issue (thousands) (AT &) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (BE) &F
(US cents per share) (FRZEM) (0.16) 0.10
Diluted (b) #8

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is same as basic (loss)/
earnings per share as there are no dilutive instruments for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

HE-_Z-—NER_T—Z=ZF+=
A=+—HLFE ARITESEST
B -SREE (BB BFETR
X (BER) /BRER -
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29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 29 ERRIAZ(BREEEHFM)
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)
2014 2013
—E-—NmF —F—=
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE5x FET
Wages, basic salaries and allowances T& K¥HMERL 24,096 24,469
Pension costs — defined contribution plans iR {R& AN — & B L 3T & 2,556 2,435
Other employee benefits H b {E B & F 2,483 3,082
29,135 29,986
30 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 30 BHiRFIRE
As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group RIEWEAEERATE AEEANR -
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in ENFF+ZA=+—HIUNRERH
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The EEERHTERMBRAKEE -ZFH
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of HARERZ=ZZZENF+_A=+—082
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly PR 7% F B K B 18 PR 75 B B R0 /<18 A HAIR A
salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day. T AFIED -
2014 2013
—E-OF —E—=%F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
As at 1 January m—A—H 1,169 1,262
Current service cost BIVHA AR 75 B 2 208 107
Payments (NEN (163) (200)
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 1,214 1,169
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FriEAMmEBRRERZAT
2014 2013
—EZ-F —ET—=%F
Discount rate IR & 9% 9%
Salary growth rate TEERE 3.0% - 7.9% 3.0% - 7.9%
Expected years of service remaining TEHA R e AR TS SE IR 15 - 20 years 15 - 21 yearsfF
Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective BEHR-TENF—A—BRERZHE
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to HeRkz AEEELEUHEEERE
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its REEZREREMERBITEIELHK R
employees in Vietnam. The group has no further payment ERZEHFTE FNEEREREMNRE
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The F-ZERFRIPINHERREER

contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when MF X e
they are due.
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31 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 31 EEREREEEBMFHM
MANAGEMENT
(a) The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable (a) XEEAREEBEENEENERARE
to the directors of the Company by the Group during the FHHMEENT

year are as follows:

2014 2013
—E-ImF —E-=%F
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Fees we 9 6
Basic salaries and allowances [ 37 KO£ 8L 1,222 1,222
Discretionary bonuses )15 3 AEAT 15 -
1,246 1,228
None of the directors of the Company waived any REFEWEARNBEEREEMH
emoluments during the year (2013: Nil). M(—Z—=F &) -
The remuneration of every director of the Company for HE-_ZT-—NE+=-A=+—H1
the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below: FE ARARSESHHINES
T~
Other
Discretionary benefits
Fees Salary bonuses (Note) Total
At ER
Name of Director BEHS he ¢ BERRRA (i) &%
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEn TEL Txn T5n TEn
Executive Director BiES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BRESE 1 280 - 13 294
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEEE - 200 - 13 213
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BEEEE - 305 15 13 333
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRIEE - 150 - 13 163
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou BT - 150 - 13 163
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng FEES - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung Faat St 1 - - 12 13
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEREE 2 - - 12 14
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray i pited 2 - - 12 14
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa MEBRLE 1 - - 12 13
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen ffkexs 2 - - 12 14
Total ait 9 1,085 15 137 1,246
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31 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 31 EERERETEBHOFHH (&)
MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
The remuneration of every director of the Company for HE_ZT—=F+"-A=+—H1k
the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below: FE-ARRSESTHHFHHE M
T
Other
Discretionary benefits
Fees Salary bonuses (Note) Total
At ER
Name of Director ESpz he ¢ BERRRA (P &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn Tin FE7 TEr
Executive Director BTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEERE - 280 - 13 293
Mr. Yang, Cheng BIEEA - 200 - 13 213
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang BRELE - 305 - 13 318
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 150 - 13 163
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou N EE - 150 - 13 163
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BABREE - - - 12 12
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BRERA - - - 12 12

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

Director

Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BELRE 2 - - 12 14
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray REREE 1 - - 12 13
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa AEEEL 1 - - 12 13
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen gL 2 - - 12 14
Total At 6 1,085 - 137 1,228
Note: B 5
Other benefits include travelling allowance. H fth 48 7 645 2= fROEBL o

(b) The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest (b) AEEAFERNREHZSTHMALT
in the Group for the year included five (2013: five) PRERABR(ZE—=F:A4%)H7T
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the B HEMMNeER EX 2z
analysis presented above. Bk o

() During the year, no emoluments have been paid to the () AFEUERAAQTES (BIELRE
directors of the Company (includes the five highest paid ERZsESHMAL) IHME  1F
individuals of the Group) as an inducement to join or as BREMALRSEE /R
compensation for loss of office. & o
There are no outstanding share options as at 31 RZE-—MER_T—=F+_A
December 2014 and 2013. =+ — B RTTE
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31 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 31 ESREREEEBEMTFH (8)
MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Senior management remuneration by band (d) ESREEENSEHE
The emoluments fell within the following bands: BN FRIATEE :

Number of individuals

AE
2014 2013
ik .
Emolument bands (in US$) e wsE (Emr)
UsS$80,001 — US$105,000 80,0013 7T — 105,000 7T 5 10
US$105,001 — US$130,000 105,0013 7T — 130,000% 7T 5 3
32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 32 RXBEEZHS
2014 2013
—EB-QmEF —F-=F
Us$’000 Us$'000
SFESn FET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrETSBIAT (EHR) 5 F (1,496) 2,522
Adjustments for: FATIER A
— Finance costs/(income) — net (Note 24) BB (A
— % (fsr24) 267 (239)
— Share of post tax loss of an associate — A — S R AR
(Note 10) 2518 (FIEE10) 97 32
— Depreciation of property, plant and —WE BELRREBERE
equipment (Note 7) (MF5E7) 20,175 22,145
— (Reversal)/provision for impairment of — W E F R E
trade receivables (Note 13) (BE), B
(BFE13) (21) 127
— Amortisation of intangible assets — R EESH (HE8)
(Note 8) 1,334 1,339
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6)  — = iy {5 i} #6446 £
(P 3E6) 66 55
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and —HEME BERERE
equipment (see below) ZEE (RT3 314 269
— Gain on disposal of non-current assets —HERIEREIERD
held for sale (see below) BEz2WE (RTFX) - (986)
20,736 25,264
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32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 32 ¥EBEEZHRE ()
(continued)
2014 2013
—E-—NmF —EF—=
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE5x FET
Change in working capital (excluding EEEGH
the effects of exchange differences on (RET4r B R
consolidation) Fiztﬂiﬁﬁ%%)
- Inventories 78 10,427 (24,106)
— Trade receivables, prepayments and —JEWE 5 R
other receivables AR RIE K
H A [l W IR 2,636 5,880
- Trade payables, accruals and —ENE SRR
other payables EstERA K
H A [~ IR 3,363 (9,408)
— Net changes in balances with —HAMENRIRIAZ
related companies gE)FE (1,070) (50)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations ~ EBEE(FTH)Z2H& 36,092 (2,420)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale iz BHenErxN LENE HER
of property, plant and equipment and non-current assets held BB REHE RS EE ZFBFIAN
for sales comprise: N
2014 2013
—E-IE —T—=F
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTET FET
Net book amount (Note 7) BRTEEE (MisE7) 326 279
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEME BELRRBEZ
equipment (Note 22) B8 (MsE22) (314) (269)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and HEME BMERREZ
equipment FriS 8 12 10
Net book amount BRI FE = 1,900
Gain on disposal of non-current assets HERFELEFRBDEEZ
held for sale W = 986
Proceeds from sale of non-current & B E HJ' EIERBEET
assets held for sale IIECE! = 2,886
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33 COMMITMENTS 33 KiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXEIE
The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end REERREMRDTHNERESE
of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: ZEARXIHMAT
2014 2013
—2-WmF —F-=%
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Contracted but not provided for BRT#B R B E
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE 3,408 39,345
Investment in an associate (Note) R—EEBERRZRE
(B &E) 2,632 2,632
6,040 41,977
Note: P&
Details of investment are disclosed in Note 10. REFBERITET 109 TR -
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) KERNRIE
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease REEBE AT AHESEBELM -
payments in respect of land and buildings under non- HMEEFARARINHSEERAE
cancellable operating leases as follows: FIREFRMNT
2014 2013
—2-WmF —F-=%
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
No later than one year —F RN 528 491
Later than one year and —FRHREAFA
no later than five years 1,597 1,953
Later than five years hF & 2,557 2,632
4,682 5,076
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34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34 BRAR
At 31 December 2014, the Company has given guarantees for RZE—HF+ZA=+—H &ARQF
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$92,500,000 KB A F92,500,000% L (T —=
(2013: US$92,300,000), of which US$51,235,000 (2013: % 92,300,000 7T) Z RITIEERHHE
US$60,244,000) has not been utilised. & HA51,235000% L (ZF—=
60,244,000% 7T ) W R R ©
35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 BREALERS
The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family, AEBSZRIERTAGRRE EHKER
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng, TEIGSEM Se A IGIERE KB E 15
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang, WESEE  HEMNELE  HKELEE  BR
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms. MEEBIUNSE  BREE BB
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei. T BREBLLERGRIEL L
(a) The table below summarises the related parties and (a) TEBMIARA-_ZT—NF+ = A
nature of their relationship with the Company as at 31 = t—BZEHREALRAEEERAD
December 2014: AIMEEREE
Related party Relationship with the Company
FEEAL =N B R ES
Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan™) A substantial shareholder of the Company
KA ERODBRAR ([8EKT]) ARFREEZRE
Dacin International Holdings Ltd. An associate of the Company
EMBERZERERRAA PN NG|
Capron Group Limited A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family
Capron Group Limited —E ARG RKEERZESZ AT
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35 FRAZEALRS ()
(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) CEAREEBHEEBHRETHNEKRE
out in the normal course of the Group's business are as FEATIAT
follows:
2014 2013
—E—NF —E =4
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan magrRiEEEm (i) 2,678 2,865
Technological support fee paid to A & /&K fF 3 4 17
Taiwan Vedan XEE (ii) 2,267 2,268
Agency commission income A E R A B
received from Taiwan Vedan RIEBBAESIA (i) 16 25
Sale of 0.1% of shareholding of M Capron Group
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Limited it & Vedan
Corporation Limited to Capron (Vietnam) Enterprise
Group Limited Corporation Limited
20.1% M #E (i) 155 -
Notes: B eE
(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to () ARAFEERR MABEALE

the related parties were conducted in the normal course of

business.

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the

transactions were carried out in the normal course of

business and the fees are charged in accordance with the

terms of underlying agreements.

(iii)  Details of the related party transaction are disclosed in

Note 37.

(i)

(iii)

HZHERERBEBRET

ARREERE ZEXFH5HEAEF
X WA RBBEHES
fe s & -

EREALR 52 BER N 37
HE -
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34 BRAEALES (1)
() Key management compensation (0 TEEEAEMSE
The compensation paid or payable to key management, HEERBENKENEEZTEA
including all executive directors and senior management, E(BEMENTESERENER
for employee services is shown below. YZEHMEIIIT
2014 2013
—2-mEF —=—=
Us$’000 Us$'000
SPEEE FET
Salaries and other short-term F R EMEHESREA
employee benefits 2,252 2,417
(d) Year-end balances with the related parties (d) EBEEBEEALTZERER
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had the following RZTE—WF+=/A=+—H8 &%
significant balances with the related parties: EHEEHEEALTZEFEEARNT:
2014 2013
—2-mFE  ZF=F
Note Uss$‘'000 Us$'000
g FEx FET
Current: B ER -
Amount due from/(to) e, (FERT) &
Taiwan Vedan KA}z %A (i) 1,146 (313)
Short term loan to an associate LTY—HEBERAZ
REEX (i) - 96
Amount due from an associate R —MEE R A2
R (i) 123 -

Notes: B E -

(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest- (i BERNHA &% AEIER -
free and have no fixed terms of payment. REREEFEER-

(i) The short-term loan to an associate is unsecured, bears iy HKF7F HBHEARZEHERAE
interest at 3.5% per annum, denominated in US$ and is R IZFEFRISEE AET
repayable on 16 September 2014. FHEWERZZT—NFALATS

BHEE-
(i)  As at 31 December 2014, the amount due from an iy M-ZZE—NF+-_A=+—8 &

associate is US$123,000, which is unsecured, interest free,
denominated in US$ and is repayable on demand (2013:

nil).

140 vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk BIR (3258) BB AT

W — B & A R 018 A123,000%
T(ZZE—=% %) FHXEA
SR 8 AETHE XA
REREE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

36

37

BANKING FACILITIES

Save as disclosed in Notes 19 and 34 to the financial
statements, the Group's bank borrowings of US$57,277,000 as
at 31 December 2014 (2013: US$36,066,000) were secured by
legal charges over certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment (Note 7) with net book amount of approximately
Us$7,557,000 (2013: US$15,058,000) and the Group's
restricted cash (Note 14) of approximately US$4,249,000 (2013:
US$4,264,000).

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

On 25 July 2014, the Group disposed of 0.1% of interest
in Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited to
Capron Group Limited, a related party, at a consideration of
US$155,000, which is not settled as of reporting date. The
carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in Vedan
(Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited on the date of
disposal was US$216,000. The Group recognised an increase
in non-controlling interests of US$216,000 and a decrease in
equity attributable to owners of the company of US$61,000.
The effect of changes in the ownership interest of Vedan
(Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited on the equity

36

37

HMITESH
BrRBF AR R M AE19OR34FTIH T & N A
SER-_FT—NF+=A :JF*EIZfE
1718 857,277,000 T (ZE — =%
36,066,000% 7T ) EEEEE@TE%’W,SSZOOO
%n( =T — =4 :15,058,000% 0) &
ETAEEME BERZEB (ME7)
Ziiiﬁ%ﬂ&$‘il2§[ﬁ%lﬁﬂi\ ( Bf
FH14)#94,249,000X T (Z T — =4
4,264,000% 7T ) {EHE # -
MERRER/ETZIES
R_ZE—WNFtA=-_+HB KNEE
155,000 Jt X & M A& @ A L Capron
Group Limitedit &Vedan (Vietnam)
Enterprise Corporation LimitedZ0.1%
Bam - MAREAH ZeBERASEH-
A& BHE - Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise
Corporation Limitedz 3F 5 % # & iR I {E
73216,0003 7T ° 78 & B R JE 1 I #E &
£ 9N216,000%€ T R AR AR A FE(L 7
# o 461,0003 7T © A B Vedan (Vietnam)
Enterprise Corporation Limited# & A xS

attributable to owners of the company during the year is EHHEFALRARREEABRGESZZZE
summarised as follows: W
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
us$’'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Carrying amount of non-controlling FriEEERiER 2
interests disposed of BREE (216) -
Consideration receivable from M IEFE R R 2 R 2
non-controlling interests JEU R AB 155 -
Loss on disposal within equity ARz HEBE (61) -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEHBEHME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31

BE+-RA=1+—HLEFEFRSXE

DECEMBER
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E2—MNE —FT—=F =—FT——-F —ZT——F ZT-IZF
US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FExT FET FET FET FET
Revenue &S 325,627 342,453 372,922 382,900 336,107
(Loss)/profit before FRFT1S B AT
income tax (B18) 55 (1,496) 2,522 9,964 11,021 1,955
Income tax expense FriSfim X (1,432) (1,794) (3,413) (5,084) (4,582)
(Loss)/profit attributable AN/ &
to owners of wAa A
the Company fEfE (BER)
i ) (2,928) 1,488 7,342 7,902 (1,480)
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 B+-BA=+—HHBEEERAR
DECEMBER
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E—NFE —T—=F =ZET——-F =T——F ZZT—ZF
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET FZET FET FET
Assets and liabilities EENAE
Total assets BEERLE 378,440 352,670 353,729 361,367 370,876
Total liabilities BERTE (111,341) (82,513) (82,329) (89,746) (104,700)
Total equity T 267,099 270,157 271,400 271,621 266,176
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Reference for Shareholders

Main Board of
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“HKEx")

Place of Listing

Stock Code
HKEx 02317
Access to Bloombeg 2317 HK Equity
Access to Reuters 2317.HK
Board Lot 4,000
Par Value : Us$0.01
Trading Currency : HKD

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year ended

Full year results announced
Annual general meeting

Interim results to be announced

31 December, 2014
24 March, 2015

19 May, 2015

In the last week of
August, 2015*

* subject to change

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong
branch share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.
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Investor Relations

REERR

Over the years, the Group has been committed to maintaining close
contact and good communication with investors in a professional
and open manner to collect more information and valuable opinions,
as well as providing timely disclosure of its business strategies and
directions of the Group, so as to enhance corporate governance while
strengthening investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
meetings and conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and
was proactive in dispatching the latest information of its business
to investors. Information about an environmental issue related
to its Vietnam operation was relayed to investors. This is in line
with the Group’'s commitment to keep up open and transparent
communication as well as ensuring that investors fully understand its
operations in order for them to make sound investment decisions.

Vedan International places strong emphasis of maintaining good
investor relations. During the year under review, the Group hosted
a total of 22 one-on-one meetings and teleconferences with major
international institutional investors including ABCI Securities, BNP
Paribas Securities, DBS Vickers and Standard Chartered Bank, among
others, employing all the different important channels to nurture
good investor relations.

In addition, the Group constantly interacts with investors via its
corporate website. During the year, the Group has posted its
announcements, annual and interim reports, and all relevant
disclosures and circulars on its website promptly for the convenient
access and reference by investors. The Company website address is:
http://www.vedaninternational.com

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors.
The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com
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